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Strategic report

The ditectors present theii Strategic 1eport for the Company foi the year ended 31 December 2020,
Review of the Company’s business

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the onshore reinsurance vehicle far the Aviva pic Group “the Group™).

The Company has quota share reinsurance arrangements witn fellow Gioup subsidiaries as follows:

. Aviva Insurance Limited (AlL} which transacts general and health insurance business, to reinsuie 50%¢ of its insurance liabilities;

. Aviva Assuiances (FGN a Group subsidiary incotporated in France which transacts gene: al and health insurarce business, to reinsure 50% of its
insurance liabilities;

. Aviva Life & Pensions UK Limited (JK L&EP) which transacts investment and long term insurance business, to reinsure 30% of the liabilities in its
non-profit sub-fund (NPSF}, and

. Aviva Insurance Company of Canada. Aviva General Insurance Company. Traders General Insurance Company, Scottish & York insurance Co

Limited, Elite Insurance Company. S&Y Insurance Company and Pilot Insurance Company, being the Group subsidiary companics transacting
general insurance business in Canada {("CGI™. to reinsure 25% of their insurance lizbilities.

Significant events

On 26 June 2020 the Company amended 1ts existing quota shate reinsurance treaties with UK L&P, with the amendment backdated to T January 2020, The
amended reinsurance tieaty covers 30% of the existing liabilities and future business written in UK L&P’s NPSF.

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a strain of novel coronavirus disease, COVID-19, a global pandemic. The
prolonged spread of COVID 15 has resulted in an cconomic downturn in jurisdictions in which the Company aperates and the global economy mare
widely, as well as causing increased volatility and declines in financial markets, The Company has been impacted by the COVID 19 pandemic through its
cedants’ operations, insurance products and assets holdings as well as ongoing difficult conditions in the globai financial markets and the wider
macreeconomic environment. The effects of COVID-18 continue to present unprecedented uncertainty that may adversely impact the resuits of the
Company. However, the strength of the Company's capital and liguidity means it is well positioned to manage this crisis.

The Company managed its capital cautiously. taking into account the economic outlook. Thiring 2070 certain actions weie taken by the Company's
cedants to reduce risk to certain asset classes and protect the Company's capitat position, The regulatory capital surplus is £1,707 million at 31 December
2020 (2019 £2.033 millient. The movement in the year reflects capital generation from new and existing business, the impact of economics on the balance
sheet and the payment of dividends.

Further information on the impact of COVID 19 can be found within note 15(b1 and note 24(i),

Financiaf position and performance

I he financial position of the Company at 31 December 2020 is shown 1n the statement of financial position on page 27. with the trading 1esults shown in
the income staternent on page 25 and the statement of cash flows on page 28.

Gross written premiums weie 10,886 million (2019 £10,845 mifion). During the year the UKL&P reinsurance amenament, described under Significant
avents above. resulted in the Company receiving a single non-recurring gross written premium of £1,702 million. During 2019. the Company received a
single non-recurring premium of £1.137 millien following the establishment of new reinsurance arrangements with CGi.

The loss after tax for the year was £{745] million [2019: £951 million profit ofter tax). The decrease compared to 2018 has been driven by the non-recurring
£11.129) millicn loss after tax from the UK L&P treaty amendments, where the reinsutance arrangement was priced on an econemic basis which makes
allowance for items not included within the IFRS vatuation. The loss after tax has been offset by underlying profits generated from the life and general
insurance tieaties, including profits arising from longevity assumption changes {mainly driven by long-term trends, not COVID-19] during the year of £117
million (201%: £293 million].

COVID-15 impacts on the Company's results are limited, with business interruption losses ceded to the Company offset by the favourable impact of
reduced economic activity in other personat lines and taking into account higher profit-contingent commissions payabie to distributers by the Company’s
cedants. Results also include the offsetting non-economic COVID-19 impacts on the long-term insurance contract liabilities with an increase attributable
to mortality mostly offset by a decrease attributable to longevity experience.

The Company paid dividends totalling £515 million te its parent company duting the year ©2018: £190 multion).

The Company’s net assets have decreased by £1,260 million 22019, mereased Ly £761 million) in line with the loss after tax and dividend payments
described in this section.

Section 172 (1) Statement
The directors repot here on how they have discharged thei: duties under Section 172 ;11 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Board is responsible tor monitoting and upholding the cuiture. values. standards, ethics and reputation of the Company to ensure that the Company’s
obligations to its shareholder and to its stakeholders are met. It monitors adheience to the Aviva Group business standards ard compliance with local
corporate governance requirements and is committed to acting if the Company should fail to act in the manner we expect of it.

For cach matter which comes before the Board. stakeholders who nay be affected are identified and their interests are carefully considered as patt of the
Board's decision making process.

The Board is also focused on the wider social context within which the business operates. including those issues related to climate change wich are of
fundamertal importance to the planet’s well-being,
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Strategic report (continued)

Qur culture

The Company s part of the wider Aviva Group. which is the provider of vital financial services to millions of custemers. Companies within the Aviva Group
seck to earn customers’ trust by acting with integrity and responsibility at all times. The Company looks to build relationships with al’ its stakeholders
based on openness and continuing dialogue.

The Company's culture is shaped, in conjunction with its ultimate sharcholder Aviva ple, by clearty defined values to help ensure the Company does the
right thing. The Compary values diversity and mclusivity in its workforce and beyond. The Company seeks to act in a manner consistent with the broader
commitment that the Aviva Group makes to each uftimate exteinal customer and stakeholders; that is "with you taday, for a better tomorrow.”
Throughout the Company's business, the Board is proud that our people live by our core value of caring for our customers. for each other and for the
communities we serve.

Key strategic decisions in 2020

The Company’s core stiategic purpose is to promote capital efficiency and iealise the benefits of group diversification of tisk through lower solo capital
requirements in the ceding entities. The Boaid considers the long-term impact of corporate actions and decisions on ow shareholder. During 2020 the
Raard considered the following:

i Final Dwidend
The directors do not recommend a final dividend on the Company s ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December 2020.
(1) Interim Dividends

During the year, the directors approved dividends of £515 million taking into account the current and future outlook for distributable reserves, capitat
surplus and liguidity, and the level of protection provided to cedants and their pelicyholders by the capital surplus of the Company.

[liiy  3-year Strategy

The ditectars reviewed and approved the 3-year strategic plan and determined the level of expected luture dividends that weie consistent with the need
to maintain sufficient finandial security for cedants and their policyholders,

{ivl  Treaty Development

In line with cur agreed strategy, on 26 June 2020. the directors approved amendments to the guota share agreements with UK L&P. backdated to 1
January 2020, The amended reinsurance treaty covers 30% of the existing liahilities and future business written in UK L&P's NPSF, enhancing both capital
efficiency and dividend capacity within the Group.

Stakeholder Engagement

{i Employees

. The Campany has no employees. All UK employees engaged in the activities of the Company are employed by a subsidiary undertaking of Aviva
ple. Aviva Fmplayment Services Limited. Disclosumes 1elating to employees may be found ir the annizal 1eport and financial statements of Aviva
Employment Services Limited. The Company is recharged with the cost of the staff provided by Aviva Employment Services Limited.

(i) Customers
. The Company does not have any direct external customers, but it does have quota share reinsurance arrangements with several of the Aviva
Group subsidiary insurance companies who themselves have external customers,
. The Company considers the impact of its actions on its cedants and then external customers when making decisions,
. The Company receives updates on its cedants that include information an their interactions with external policyholders.
(i) Suppiiers
. The majoiity of the Company’s suppliers are internal to the Aviva Group, with the supptien ielated activity managed in line with the Aviva Group

Procurement & Qutsourcing Business Standard. This ensuies that supply risk is managed appropriately including in relation to customer
outcomes, data secuiity. corporate responsibility, financial, operational, contractual. and brand damage caused by inadequate oversight or
supplier failure,

. An important part of the Company’s culture is the promotion of high legal, ethical and environmental and employee related standards within
its business and also among its suppliers. Before working with any new suppliers, they are piovided with the Aviva Group’s Supplier Code of
Behaviour. and interaction with thern is guided by the Group's Business Code of Ethics.

. The Board reviews the actions the Group has taken to prevent modern slavery and associated practices in any part of our supply chain and
approves the Group’s Modern Slavery Act statement each year.
. In the UK, tne Company's ultimate parent. Aviva plc, is a signatory of the Prompt Payment Code which sets standards for high payment

practices. The Aviva Group is a Living Wage employer in the UK, ard the Company's supplier contracts include a commitment to pay their
eligible employees not less than the Living Wage in 1espect of work provided to the Company at its premises in the UK.

. The Company's directors are ¢losely involved in the management of the Company's most critical or important suppl-ers and regularty 1eview
reports on their performance.

vl Communities

. Recognising climate change presents risk and opportunities for customers, communities and business, the Group is signed up to the United
Hations Net Zero Asset Owner Alliance commitment. As part of the Group, the Company is committed to the Group’s long-term strategy to
reach net zero by 2040, and to support achieving this target the Greup has defined climate 1isk preferences and operating tisk imits. The Board
approved the adoption of the new climate risk preferences in September 2020, with the Company's approved 2021.2023 Plan taking the new
climate risk preferences into consideration. Details on the Group’s commitiment around tackling the Climate Crisis can be found in the
Carporate Responsibility section of the Aviva plc Annual Report and Arcounts 2020

i Shareholders

. Ouwr ultimate sharehelder s Aviva plc and there is ongoing communication and engagement with the Aviva pic Board. Any matte-s requiring
escalation are escalated by the Board, Audit Committee and Risk Committee thicugh their Chairmen to its parert. Add tionatly, members of the
Aviva ple Board can attend Board mectings oy invitation,
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Strategic report (continued)

ivil  Regulators
. The Company has a2 programme of regular meetings between Board membeis iincluding non-executive directors). the Company's senio
management and the PRA. 1he Company routinely provides copies of Board, Risk and Audit Committee papers to the PRA and also 1esponds to
requests for information when required. maintaining constructive and open ietationships with the UK regulator.

Future outlook

Stiategies for the Group as a whole are determined by the Board of Aviva plc and these are shown in the Group 2020 Annual report and accounts. The
Campany will work with the Group to support the implementation of these strategies.

The strategic direction of the Company is set by the directors of the Company. The ditectors consider that the Company's principal activities will continue
unchanged for the foresecable tuture.

The Campany aims to pramote capital efficiency and realise the benefits of group diversification of risk through lower solo capital requirements in the
ceding entities. The Company continues to explore opportunities to increase the amount of business ceded ta it and (o provide capital benefits (o the
Group.

On 23 February 2021, Aviva plc announced it had appioved the sale of its entire shareholding in Aviva France to Aéma Groupe. The transaction is subject to
consultation and customaty clesing conditions, including regulatory apptoval, and fs expected te complete in the second half of 2021, As a result of this
announcement, the Company's quota share reinsurance arrangement with Aviva Assurances s likely to be terminated at a future date.

Principal risks and uncertainties

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company and the LCompany's risk management polides aie set oul in note 24 to the
financial statements.

Risk factors heyand the Company's control that could cause actual results to differ materially from those estimated inciude, but are not timited to:

. Market risk, the risk of loss o1 adverse change in the financial situation (including the value of assets, liabilities and income! resulting, directly or
indirectly, from fluctuations in the level or the velatility of market variables, such as interest 1ates, foreign exchange 1ates. equity, property and
commadity prices:

. Ciedit risk. the risk of adverse firancial impact resulting from fluctuations in cedit quality of third parties including default, rating transition
and credit spread movements;

, tife insurance 1isk, including muotality 1isk, mombidity iisk. loppevity 1isk, persistency risk, expense tisk (inclading commissions) and
policyholder behaviour 1isk around take-up of insuiance guarantees and options.

. General insurance risk, including fluctuations in the timing, frequency and severity of claims and claims settlements relative to expectations
when pricing and reserving.

. Coronavirus: During the year, the Company has been impacted by the COVID-19 pandermic through its aperations, insurance products and asset
holdings as well as ongomng difficult conditions in the global financial markets and the economy generally. The impact of COVID-19 on the
Company i< experienced through its principal risks of general and life insurance risk, market risk and credit risk: further details are provided in
note 24 Risk Management.

. The UK-EU Future Relationship Agreement came into effect an 1 January 2021. ending the Brexit transition period, for which the Company was
fully prepared it provides scope for managed policy divergence ar maintaining alignment, if the UK chooses. The agieement will have evolving
consequences in 2021 and beyond on future financial services and data iegulation, UK-EU data tiansfers, EU market access and the UK
economy which will tequire careful monitoring.

Key performance indicators
The directors consider that the Company's key performance indicators {"KPIs"I that communicate the financial performance are as follows:

. Capital Surplus
. Frofit for the year hefore tax

A summary of the KPIs is set out below:

Measure 2020 20619
£fm £m

Capital Metrics

Capital suiplus 1,707 2.033
Financial Performance Metrics

{lassiipofit for the year belore Lax (962) 1.174

The year on year movement in Profit for the vear is discussed in the Firancial position and perfarmance section of this repoit.

By order of the Board on 1 April 2021

L}/-J 3 \1S -

For and on behalf of Aviva Company Secretatial Services Limited
Company Secretary
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Directors’ report

The directors submit their annual report and the audited financial statemerts for the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Directors

The names of the current divectors of the Company are shown on page 3.

Details of Board appointments and resigrations during the year are shown below:

RW A Howe resigned as a director of the Company on 29 July 2020

P Needdeman was appointed as a ditector of the Company an 21 September 2020

M Muir was appointed as a director of the Compary on 21 September 2020

Company Secretary

The name of the cunent company secretary of the Company is shown on page 3.

Dividends

Intetim ordinary dividends of £515 million on the Company's cidinary shares were declared and settled during 2020 {2019 £150 million). The directors do not
recomrend a final dividend on the Company's ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December 2020

Going concern

The Company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the Strategic
report, which inciudes a section describing the principal risks and uncertainties. i addition, the financial statements include notes on, the Company's capital
structure (nate 23): management of its risks including market. credit and liquidity risk {note 24); and derivative financial instruments (note 25!,

The Company and its uitimate holding company, Aviva ple, have considerabte financial resources together with a diversified business model. with a spread of
businesses and geographical reach. The directors believe that the Company 1s well placed to manage its business risks successfully.

After making enguiries, the diectors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resouices Lo continue in operational existence for a
perind of at least twelve manths fiam the date of appioval of the financiat statements. For this 1eason, they contirue to adopt, and to consider apprapriate,
the going concern basis in preparing the finandal statements.

Important events since the financial year end

There have been no significont post balance sheet events subsequent to 31 December 2020,

Future outlaok

Likely future developments in the business of the Company are discussed within the Strategic report stasting on page 4.
Stakeholder Engagement

Our statements summarising our employee engagement, and our engagement with suppliers, customers and our other staketbolders are incuded in ow
Strategic 1epont starting on page 4.

Statement of Corporate Governance Arrangements

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has applied the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies [the "Principles™).
We cet out below how the Principles have been applied during 2020,

Principle 1 - Purpose and leadership
The Company is part of the Aviva Group. Following the appointinent of Amandd Blanc as Group CEO of Aviva plcin July 2020, the Group embaiked on s

strategic teview aimed al optimising its organisational stiucture. The Group's purpose continues to be “with you today, for a better tomorrow’ and we include
customers, employees and our other stakeholders in this. The Group has set out thr ee strategic priorities which will enable the business ta fulfil this purpose:

. Focus the portfalio;
. Transform performance; and
. Financial strength.

The Company supperts the Group's puiposes with its strategic purpose to optimise capital and improve the flow of cash within the glebal Aviva Group. Over
the yeat, our Board has considered the capital levels required 1o appropriately protect the ultimate customer when making risk appetite and dividend
decisions and, through the approval of an amended quota share agieement with UK L&P and investigation of potential future treaty developments, balancirg
the level of risks accepted fram its cedants.

The Board monitors the culture of the Compary. which 's aligned to that of its ultimate shareholder Aviva plc. and raises any concerns during meetings, The
Board is able to express its views on the culture of the organisation through the annual Board Effectiveness Reviews. Culture information has been added to
the Beard's annual planner to ensure the Board has the opportunity to review culture metrics,

Principle 2 - Board Composition

The Campany's Board has a separate Independent Non-Fxecutive Chait and Chief Fxecutive Offfcer to ensute that the balance of 1esponsibilities,
accountabilities and decision making acsons the Company is effectively maintained. The directars have equal voting rights when making dedisiors, except the
Chair, who has a casting vote. All divectors have access 1o the advice and seivices of the Company Secretary.

The Board has a skills matrix in place to ensuwie the compaosition of the Board containg the appiopriate combination of skills, backgiounds, expeiience and
knowledge to understand and guide the busiress. The skills matrix is a key tool in any Board reciuitment process to ensure the most suitable candidates are
put forward for appointment to fill any gaps identified ard to maintair a focus on succession planning to ensure the composition of the Board remains
appropiiate,
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Directors’ report {continued)

The Board is comprised of Independent Non Executive directors, 2 Non-Executive director and Executive directors. The Board is responsible for organising
and directing the affairs of the Company in a manner that is most likely to promote the success of the Company foi its shareholders as a whole and in a way
that is consistent with its Articles of Association. applicable regulatory requitements and cunent coiporate governance practice.

The Board undertook a formal effectiveness review of its performance, facilitated by Lintstock in 2020 and it has scheduled the next independent review for
mid-2021. The results were produced by Lintstock and presented to the Board at its meeting on 22nd Septembes 2020 and an action plan was agreed. with
the actions tracked by the Company Secretaiy.

Principle 3 - Director Responsibilities

The Company operates in accordance with the Aviva Governance Framework, as approved by Aviva ple. fhe Aviva Governance Framework articulates the
intertelation between our purpose, cultuse, values; its 1eporting and escalation structures and their alignment with legal and regulatory duties and its risk
management frameweork. The cote elements are the legal ana regulatory flow of accountability and decisior making and the Cempary's frameworks, policies
and standards and the checks and balances through the operation of the Company’s 2nd and 3rd lines of defence which ensure effective Board oversight.

Within the Aviva Group. accountability is formally delegated by the Board to the CEC and by the CEQ to their direct reports. The CEO delegations ale
referenced in the Board's Terms of Reference. Accountability rests with these individuals and the Board. These accountabilities are aligned with the Senior
Managers Certification Regime ("SMCR") responsibilities. The roles and responsihilities are clearly documented in the Management Responsibility Maps which
form part of our Governance Framework and which are submitted to the PRA and FCA on a quarterly basis. The Company also adheres to the Subsidiary
Governance Principles which are a set of internal governance principtes that companies within the Aviva Group are required to adhere to.

The Board held 14 meetings this year. plus an additional day of strategic planning. The Board's key areas of focus 1n 2020 were on business perfermance
updates (financial and capital), updates from cedant businesses, governance, regulatory matters and future strategic objectives tinked to the Company’s
Strategy.

The Board has established an Audit Committee and a Risk Committee. The Terms of Reference for these committees are zligned to those of Aviva plc and
apptoved annually by the Company's Board. The committees also undertake annual effectiveness reviews. The results are discussed by the committee and an
action plan is agreed, with the actions tracked by the Company Secretary.

The Audit Committee is 1esponsible for 1eviewing the effectiveness of the Company's systems and contrels and receives regular updates on the work of the
internal audit function and from the external auditors. The Company alsa receives reports from the CFO at each Committee meeting. Financial reporting for
the Compary is cuntently externally audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LIP ("Pw( ™) on an annual basis.

The Risk Committee is responsible for oversight of risk, reviewing the Company's risk appetite and risk profile. teviewing the effectiveness of the Company's
risk management framewor k, reviewing the methodology used in deter mining the Company’s capital requirements, stress testing, ensuring due diligence
appraisals are carried out an strategic or significant transactions, and monitoring the Company’s regulatory activities, as appropriate.

Principle 4 - Opportunity and Risk

The role of the Board is to promate the long-term sustainable success of the Company. generating value tor its shareholder withir a framework of prudent
and effective controls, which enable risks to be assessed and managed.

The Company operates a risk management flamework that forms an integral part of the management and Board processes and decision making framewaork,
aligned to the Group's risk management framework. The key elements of the risk management thamework comprise risk appetite; risk governance, including
tisk policies and business standards, risk oversight committees and roles and respansibilities; and the processes the Company uses to identify, measure,
manage, monitor and report risks, including the use of risk models and stress and scenario testing.

The Company's positian against its risk appetites and tolerances is monitored and reported to the Board on aregular basis.
The Risk Committee assists the Boaid in its oversight of risk by undertakirg the foliowing:

- Review and make recommendations around the Company’s tisk appetite and risk profile in relation to capital and liguidity:
- Review the effectiveness of the Company's risk management flamewoik;

- Review the methodology used in determining the Company’s capital rtequirements,

- Review the scenarfos and stress tests proposed by Management:

- Ensure due diligence appraisals are carried out on strategic and significant transactions;

- Fromote a risk awareness culture for the Company;

- Consider the Company's exposure to the financial risks from Climate change: and

- Oversee the reputation of the Company

The oversight of risk and risk management is further supported by management's Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCO" which focuses on insurance and
financial risk, and Operational Risk Committee ("ORC") which focuses on operational and reputational risks.

The Company's Risk Committee works and liaises as necessary with the Audit Committee and Board. performing other duties and responsibilities that are
delegated to it by the Board and escalating matters to the Board and’or the Aviva plc Risk Committee as appiopriate.

Principle 5 - Remuneration

The Company has no employees. All UK employees are empioyed by a subsidiaiy undertaking of Aviva ple, Aviva Employment Services Limited. As part of the
Aviva Graup, these staff enjoy the benefit of the Aviva Group policies and benefits made available to then.

Under the Aviva Group Reward Governance Framework. the Company's remuneration policy opelates in accordance with the Gtobal Remuneration Policy as
approved by the Aviva plc Remuneiation Committee, which applies to all employees in entities within the Aviva Group. Independent Non Executive director
fees are also set by Aviva plc and reviewed annually. Details of directors’ remuneration is included on page 36,

The Aviva Group reports an the pay ratio of the Group CEO to UK employees. and details of this can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report in the
Aviva plc Annual report and accourts which is available at www.aviva.com/investors:repeits. Aviva plc also reports in our gender pav gap. and on the steps
we are taking in relation to this which car be found at www aviva.com/gpg
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Directors’ report (continued)

Political donations
The Company did not make any political donations during the year (2019: £ nil).
Supplier payment policy

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company is compliant with the Prompt Payment of Accounts Act 1997, as amended by the European
Communities (Late Payment in Commercial Transacticas) Regulations 2002. It is the policy of the Company to pay foi goods and services on presentation of
an invoice by the supplier. Statements from suppliers showing amounts outstanding in excess of 30 days a:e immediately investigated and 1esolved as soon
as possible.

Financial instruments

The Company uses financial instruments to manage certain types of risks. including to those relating to credit, foreign currency exchange, cash flow, liquidity,
interest rates, and equity and property prices, Details of the objectives and management of these instruments are contained in note 24 on risk management.
Employees

The Company has no employees.

Disclosure of information to the Auditors

In accordance with section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, the directors in office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's External Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, is unaware and each director has
taken all steps that cught 1o have been taken as a director in crder to make themselves aware of any relevant audit Information and to establish that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is aware of that information.

Independent auditors

It is the intention of the directors to reappoirt the Auditors. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. under the deemed appointment ruies of section 487 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Qualifying indemnity provisions

In 2004, Aviva ple, the Company’s uitimate parent. granted an indemnity to the directars against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties,
subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 1985, which continue to apply in relation to any provision made belore 1 October 2007, This indemnity
is a “qualitying third party indemnity” for the puiposes of section 309A to sectior 309C of the Companies Act 1985. These qualifying third party indemnity
provisions remain in force as at the date of approving the directers’ report by virtue of paragraph 15. Schedule 3 of The Companies Act 2006 {Commencement
No. 3, Consequential Amendments. Transitienal Provisions and Savings! Order 2007,

The directars alse have the benefit of the indemnity provision centained in the Company's articles of association, subject to the conditions set out in the
Companies Act 2006. This is a “qualifying third party mdemnity” provision as defined by <ection 234 of the Companics Act 2006,

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsibie for preparing the strategic repert, ditectors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations,

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Undet that law the directors have prepared the financial
statements in accordance with international accounting standasds in cordormity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the profit o1 loss of the Company for that period. In pieparing these financial statements, the directors are 1equired to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make reasonable and prudent judgements and accounting estimates:

- state whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requitements of the Companies Acl 7006 have been followed.
subject to any material depattues disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concein basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue ir business.

The ditectors are resporsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and discjose with
reasanable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enakble them to ersure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006,

They are alsc responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of traud and
other irrcgularitics.

By order of the Board on 1 April 2021

Y
Y h
Forand on behall of Aviva Company Secietarial Servicas Limited
Company Secietary
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Reportonthe sudi of tne foenc el statere e
Opinion

In our opinion, Aviva International Insuiance Limited's financial statements:

. give a tiue and fail view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its loss and ¢ ash flows for the vear then ended:

. have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting stanuards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006: and

. have been prepared in accotdance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2020 {" the Annual Repoit™s, which comprise: the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020; the Income statement. the Statemert of cash flows and the Statement of charges in equity for the
year then ended: the accounting policies; ang the notes to the financial statemeants,

Cur opinion is cansistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing [UK) {*1SAs (UK)") and applicable law. Out responsibilities under 1SAs (UK} are
further desciibed in the Auditois’ 1esponsibilities for the audit of the finandial statements section of oul report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

SRt

We remained independent of the company in accordance wilh Lthe ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK.
which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 1espensibilities in accordance with
these requirements.,

Ta the best of o knowledge and belief, we deciare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standaid were not provided

Other than those disclosed in note 6. we have provided no nan-audit services to the company in the period undes audit.

Our audit approach

In addition to forming this opinion. in this report we have also provided information on how we approached the audit, how it has changed from the previous
year and details of the significant discussions that we had with the Audit Committee.

COVID-14 has meant that substantially all of our interactions were undertaken virtually, including these between engagement teams, with our cedant audit
teamns and All board members, management and staff.

Audit scope

»  The Company has reinsurance arrangements with Aviva Life and Pensions UK Limited ('UK L&P"}, Aviva Insuwance Limited ('AlL'), Aviva Assurances I'FGIY)
and Aviva Insurance Company of Canada, Aviva General Insurance Company. Traders General Insurance Company, Scottish & York Insurance Co. Limited,

Elite Insutance Company, S&Y Insurance Company and Pilot Insurance Company {together "CGI™. The Company's financial reporting includes
transactions and balances derived from financial information from these companies, and we have made use of thase companies’ auditors to provide
evidence over these transactions and balances.

+  Based on the output of cur risk assessment, full scope audit procedures were performed over UK Life & Pensions i"UK L&P"1 and Aviva Inswmance Limited
(AL which have the most significant impacts on the financial statements of the Company.

+ For FGl and £GI, we identified specific account balances which were considered te be significant in size or audit rnisk at the financial statement line itern
level in relation to the Company and scoped our audit to ‘nclude detailed testirg of those account balances.

Key audit matters
« Valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
Annuitant mortality assumptions
Ciedit default assumptians fon illiquid assets
Expense assumptions
= valuation of hard to value investments
v Valuation of general insurance liabilities
+  Risk of erter anising from the implementation of a new bulk purchase annuity i BPA™ actuarial model
«  Impact of COVID-19
Materiality
» Overall materiatity: £174m (2019: £158m based on 0.25% of total assets.

+  Performance matetiality, £130m.

il
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B

As part of designing out audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatementin the financial statements.

0o L T G L
hregularities, including haud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design proceduies in line with our responsibilities, outlined in
the Aud'tors’ responsibilities foi the audit of the financial statements section, to detect matetial misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which cur proceduies are capable of detecting irregulaiities, including fiaud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with taws and 1egulations related to
hieaches of the UK and Einopean tegulatory principles, such as those governed by the Prodential Regulation Anthority "PRA™) and the Financial Coaduct
Authority {"FCA"). and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a matenal effect or. the financial statements. We also considered those
laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act JUUb. We evaluated management’s
incentives and opportunities for fraudulert manipulation of the financial statemerts {including the risk of override of controls), and detesmined that the
principal risks were related to management bias in accourting estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements as shown in our key audit
matters. The engagement team shaied this risk assessment with the other auditos so that they could include appropriate audit procedures in respaonse to
such iisks in their work. Audit procedures petformed by the engagement team included:

. Discussions with the Board, management, internal audit, senior management invelved in the Risk and Compliance functions and the Company's
egal function, including consideration of known o1 suspected instance of non compliance with laws and regulation and fraud:

. Assessment of matters reported on the Company's whistleblowing helpline and fraud register and the 1esults of management s investigation of
such matters;

. Reading key correspondence with the PRA and FCA in relation to compliance with laws and regulations:

. Reviewing relevant meeting minutes, inciuding those of the Board, Risk Committee and Audit Committee;

. Attendance at Audit Committees:

. Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual accaunt combinations or posted by senio

manag@mpnt;

. Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature. timing o1 extent of our testing of areas identified as having an
increased rish; and

. Testing transactions entered inte cutside of the Company's normal course of business.

Thete are inherent limitations in the audit procedures desaiibed above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance with taws and
regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, theisk of not detecting a material misstatement
due 1o fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting ane resulting from enon, as fravd may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery o
intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

R R I

Key audit matters aie those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the finandal statements of the
current petiod and inctude the most significant assessed visks of material misstatement whether o1 ot due to fraud) identified by the avditors. including
those which had the greatest effect on: the ovelall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon. weire addiessed in the context of cur audit of the financial statements
as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not purovide a separate opinion on these matter s,

This is not acomplete List of allvisks identified by our audit.

Risk of etrot atising from the implementation of a new BPA actuaiial model i< a new key audit matter this year Otherwise, the key audit matters below are
consistent with last year,
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The Directors’ valuation of life insurance contract liabilities for
the settlement of future claims | involves complex and subjective
judgements about future events, both internal and external to
the business, for which small changes in assumptions can result
in material impacts to the valuation of these liahilities. This has
been compounded by the uncertainty ansing from COVID 19 and
the impact this could have on various acluarial assumptions.

Refer to accounting policy | Tpage 20 and Notes 14 and 15 [pages
36 and 39], respectively.

The work to address the wvaluation of the life insurance contiact
liabilities included the fallowing procedw es:

. We understoad and evaluated the process and contiols in
place to determine the insurance contract liabilities:

. We tested the design and opeiating effectiveness of controls
in place over insurance contract liabitities, including those
covering Lhe approval of assumptions and completeness and
accuracy ot data used;

. Using our actuarial specialist team members we appied
industry knowledge and experience and compared the
methodology, models and assumptions used against
recognised actuarial practices. This inctuded consideration
of the reasonableness of assumptions against actual
historical experfence and the appropriateness of any
judgements applied;

. We tested the key judgements over the preparation of the
liabllities, including manually calculated  components
facussing on the consistency in treatment and methodology
period on-period and with reference to recaognised actuarial
practice;

. We used the results of ar independent Pw( annual
benchmarking survey of assumptions to fuither challenge
the assumption sctting process by comparing certain
assumptions used relative to the Company's industiy peers;
and

. We assessed the disclosures in the financial statements.

As part of cur consideration of the ertire set of assumpticns, we
focused particularly on annuitant mortality, credit default fer illiquid
assets and expense assumptions given their significance to the
Company’s result and the level of judgement involved. These aspects of
our work have been consideted in more detail below.

Based an the work performed and the evidenc e obtained, we consider the
methodology and assumptions used to value the life msurance contract
lighitities to be appropriate.

Annuitant mortality assumptions used to value life insurance
contract liabilities require a high degree of judgement due to the
number of factors which may influence mortality expsiience.
The differing factors which affect the assumptions are
undetlying montalily experience {in the poitfolio), industiy and
management views on the future rate of mortality
improvements and external factors arising from developments
in the annuity market.

There are two material components to the annuitant mortality
assumptions:

. Mortality  base  assumption:  this  component s
typically less subiective as it is derived using the
externa” Continuous Mortality Investigation (UMD
tables for individua! annuities and Club Vita 3 1CV3)
tables for BPA, adjusted for internal experience.
However, judgement is required in choosing the
appropriate table and fitting internal experience to
this table,

- Rate of mortality improvements: this component is
more subjective given the uncetainty over how life
expectancy will change in the future and the lack of
available data to support judgements made in respect
of this.

Management have adopted the most recent CMI 2019 medel and

dataset in setting this assumption with specific parameters for
the long term jate of improvement and tapering at older ages
and adjustments to retlect the profile of their portfolio. This
reflects their views on the rate of mertatity improvement.

In addition, a matgin of prodence is applied to these
assumptions.

leertoaccounting poleoy | [page 200 and Neotes 23 ang 15 ipages 39

ard 39) respectely

In respect of the annuitant mortality assumptions we performed the
following:

. We tested the methodology used by management to derive
the assumptions with reference to relevant rules and
actuarial guidance and by applying cur industry knowledge
and experience. This included evaluating management’s
choice of, and fitting to, the CMI and CV3 base tables and the
adoption of the CMI 2019 model dataset and parameters for
improvements and the margin for prudence;

. We assessed the results of the experience investigations
carried out by management for the annuity business to
determine  whether  they provided support for the
assumptions used;

. We compared the mortality assumptions selected by
management against those used by thel peers;

. We considered alternative assumptions that could be used in
the CMI 2019 model and used externally published
infermation to validate the choice maragement made;

. We assessed the disciosure of the annuitant maontality
assumptions and the associated financial impact from
changes in these assumptions, arising in the period; and

’ We assessed the combined short-term COVID-19 insurance
allowance for annuitant mortality and assurance martality/
morbidity assumptions, considering experience data over
the year and the potential future scenarios modelled by
management.

Based on the work performed ond the ewidence obtatned, we consider the
assumptions used for annuitant mortahty to be appropriate.

12
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UKL&P manages the funds withhald from All These include
substantial heldings in itliquid asset classes, such as cemmercial
and equity release mortgages, with significant credit risk.

The life insurance contract Habilities are discounted using asate
determined from the yield on the support assets less a prudent
allowance for credit default risk

For the illiquid assets supporting the life insuiance contract
liabilities. management adopts an active approach to setting the
associated credit default assumptions. A long term deduction for
credit default is made Trom the current market yiclds and a
supplementary allowance is also hetd to cover the risk of higher
shart term defautt rates along with a margin for prudence.

Refer to Accounting policy | (page 20) and Notes 14 and 15,
{pages 36 and 39 respectively

In respect of the credit default assumptions, we performed the
following:
. We tested the methedolegy and credit »isk pricing madels
used by management for commeicial and equity release
mortgages to derive the assumptions with reference to
relevant rules and actuarial guidance. including the adeption
of an appropriate prudence margin and by applying our
inclustry knowledge and experience;
We validated significant assumptions used by management
by ensuring consistency with the assumptions used foi the
valuation of the assets, and against market observable data
[to the extent available and relevant] and our experience of
market practices;
We assessed the disclosuie of the credit default assumptions
and the associated financial impact from changes in these
assumptions. arising in the period: and
We assessed whether a short-term adjustments was required
to the credit default assumptions for illiquid assers due to
COVID-13. considering experience over the year and the
potential future scenatios modelled by management.

Based on the work performed and the evidence obtained. we consider the
assumptions used for credit defoult risk on commercial mortgages and
equity release mortgages to be appropniare,

Future maintenance expenses and expense inflation
assumptions aie used in the measurement of lfe insurance
contract liahilities, The assumptions reflect the expected future
expenses that will be required to maintain the inforce policies at
the balance sheet date, including an allowance for project costs
and a margin for prudence. The assumptions used require
significant judge ment.

Reter to accounting policy | ‘page 200 and Notes 14 and 15 [pages
36 and 39) respectively.

In respect of the expense assumptions, we performed the following:
. We tested the methodology used by management to derive
the assumptions with reference to relevant rules and
actuanial guidance and by applying our industry knowledge
and experience. This included testing the split of expenses
between acquisition and maintenance by agreeing a sampte
to supporting evidence:
We tested that the assumptions appropriately reflect the
expected future expenses for maintaining pelicies in force at
the balance sheet date, which includes consideration of the
altowance for project costs; ard
We assessed the disclosure of the expense assumptions and
the associated financial impact from changes in these
assumpticns. arising in the peried.

Based on the wark performed and the evidence obtained. we consider
the expense assumptions fo be appropriate.

The vaiuation of the investment portfolic involves judgement
and continues to be an area of inherent 1isk. The risk is not
uniform for all investment types and is greatest for the
following, where the investments are hard to value because
quoted prices are not readily available:

» Commercial mortgage loans:

« Equity release mortgage loans; and

« Infrastructure loans.

Refer to accounting policy L (page 721, and Notes 10, 24 and 2C
1pages 34, 45 and 52) respectively.

We assessed the Directors' approach to valuation of hard to value
investments by performing the following procedures:

. We tested data inputs used in the valuation models to
underlying decumentation on a sample basis;
We evaluated the methodology and assumptions used by
management, including yield curves. discounted cash flows,
property growth rates, lengevity and liquidity premiums as
relevant to each asset class;
We tested the operation of data integrity and change
management controls for the valuation models;
Using our valuation experts, we performed independent
vatuations for a sample of infrastructure loans, and
We assessed the disclosures in the financial statements,

Based on the work perfarmed and the ewvidence chiained, we cons:der the
methodology and assumptions used by management to value hord 1o
value assers to be approptiate.

13
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The estimation af non-life insurance contract liabilities involves a
significant degree of judgement. The liabilities are based on the
estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at
31 December 2020, whether reported or not, together with the
1elated claims handling costs.

A ange of methods, including stachastic projections, may be
used to determine these provisions. Underlying these methods
are a number of explicit ot implicit assumptions relating to the
expected settlement amount and settlement patterns of claims.
This includes assumptions relating to the settlement of persona’
injury lump sum compensation amounts.

Reter ta accounting policy | ipage 20, and Notes 14 and 15 (pages
36 and 39) respectively.

We assessed the calculstion of the non-life insurance fiabilities by
performing the following procedures:

We understood and tested the governance process in place
to determine the insurance contract labilities. ncluding
testing the associated financial 1eporting control framewori;
We tested the underlying data to soutce documentation on a
sample basis,

Using ow actuarial specialist team members, we applied our
industry knowledge and experierice and we compared the
methodology, models anc  assumptions used against
recognised actuarial practices;

Using our actuarial  specialist team  members, we
independently estimated the rescrves on selected classes of
business, panticularly focusing on the largest and most
uncertain reserves. For these classes we compared our
estimated 1eserves Lo those booked by management. and
sought to understand any signiticant differences;

For the remaining classes we evaluated the methodology
and assumptions applied, or performed a diagnostic check
te identify and investigate any anomalies; and

We assessed the disclosures in the financial statements.

Based on the work performed and ewidence obtained, we consider the
methodology and ossumptions used tc value the non-fife nsurance
contract iabilities to be appropriate.

UKL&P have introduced a new modei for the valuation of £1.3bn
of Bulk Purchase Annuities during the year.

The key risk 1n relation to any new model is the risk of error in
the implementation or the functionality of the model. This
maodel is being used to value large BPA schemes written during
the year and we have assessed the risk of error inrelation to the
BPA model to be significant given its complexity and the
magnitude of the contracts that it will be used to value.

Refer to Accounting policy | (page 20} and Notes 14 and 15,
(pages 36 and 391,

We assessed the implementation of new BPA actuarial model by
performing the fellowing procedures:

For a sample of immediate bulk purchase annuity policies we
remodelled the gross valuations to within 0.01% on average
of management’s valuation;

We have replicated the calculation of benefits in deferment
on a sample of deferred bulk purchase annuity policies to
within 0.01% on average. and

We have reviewed management’s own resuits reconciliation
testing {between this new model and the current model used
for other BPA business) and investigated any differences
noted by management.

Fased on the work performed and evidence ohtained. we consider the
voluation of the BPAs valued using the new model to be appropnate.
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The impacts of the global pandemic due to the Coronavirus
COVID 19 continue to cause significant social and econamic
disruption up to the date of repoiting, In our audit we have
identified the tollowing key impacts of COVID 15:

Ability of the entity to continue as a going concern

There are a number of potential matters in relation to COVID-19
which could impact on the going concern status of the
Company. Using downside scenarios diiven by the required Own
Risk and Sclvency Assessment (CRSA) process, the Directors
have considered the ability of the Company to remain solvent
with sufficient liguidity to meet future ohligations. The Directois
have also considered its requirements in respect of regulatory
capital under Solvency Il and the potential operational impacts
on the business atising from remote working.

The Directors’ have concluded that the Company is a going
concern.

tmpact en Estimation Uncertainty in the Financial
Statements

The pandemic has increased the level of estimation uncertainty
in the finarcial statements. The Directors have therefore
considered how COVID-19 has impacted the key estimates that
determine the valuation of material balances, particularly the
Nor Life Insurance Contract Liabilities, Life Insurance Contract
Liabilities and Hard to value Financial Investments.

In assessing management's consideration of the impact of COVID 19 on
the Company we have performed the following procedures:

We obtained management's updated going concen
assessment and challenged the 1ationale for the downsice
scenarios adopted and material assumptions made using
our knowledge of Aviva's business performance, review of
regulatory  correspondence  and  obtaining  further
corroborating evidence;

We considered information obtained during the course of the
audit and publicly available market information to identify
any evidence  that would  contradict  management’s
assessment of the impact of COVID-19; and

We  inquired and understood the actions taken by
management to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19, including
review of Board Risk Committee minutes and attendance of
all Audlit Commitiees,

We agree with the Director's conclusions in respect of going concern.

We have considered whether there have been any impacts
from remote working on the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls impacting the preparation of
financial statement information;

We have challenped management’s judgements in the
valuation of non-life insurance contracts in relation to
COVID-19, specifically the treatment of the Business
Interruption test case; and

We have challenged the judgements applied by
management to determine the insurance contract
liabitittes, including annuitant mortality, credit default
and expense assumptions, in light of the emerging

COVID-13 experience and by comparing these

Qualitative Disclosures in the Annual Report and Financial relative lo the Company’s industry peers;

Statements We have audited the balances impacted by estimaticn uncertainty and
believe the values presented in the Financial Statements to be
In additicn, the Directors have considered the guaiitative | reasonable.

disclosures inciuded in the Annual Report and Accounts in
respect of COVID-19 and the impact that the pandemic has had,
and continues to have, or the Company.

. We have reviewed the appropriateness of disclosures within
the Annual report and Financial Statements with respect to
COVID-19 and, where relevant, considered the material
consistency of this other information to the audited financial

Refer to Note 15 (page 39 statements and the information obtained in the andit.

Based on the procedures performed and evidence obtained, we
consider the disclosure of COVID- 181 the financial statements to be
appropriate.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into
account the structure of the company, the accounting precesses and contiols, and the industry in which it operates.

The principal activity of the Company 1s to act as the onshore reinsurance vehicle for the Aviva plc Group. The company has reinsurance arrangements with
UK L&P, AlL, FGl and CGI. The Company's financial reporting includes transactions and balances derived from financial infermation from these companies and
we made use of those companies” auditos to provide evidence over these transactions and balances. In determining the scope of the audit, we performed
risk assessment procedures which included undeistanding each of the companies’ business operations, the internal control environment and process for the
preparation of financial information. We identified which of those companies were of most significance to the audit of the Company based on the relative
impact of the financial information included in the Company's financial statements derived from them.

Based on the output of our nisk assessment. full scope audit procedures were performed over UK L&P and AlL, which had the most significant impact on the
financial statements of the Company.

For FGI and CGl, we identitied specific account balances which were considered to be significant in size or audit risk at the financial statement line item level
in relation to the Campany and scoped our audit to include detailed testing of those account halances.

Where the work was performed by other auditors, we determined the level of involvement we needed to have in their audit work te be able to conclude
whethet sufficient and appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Company financial statements as a whole. We
maintained regular and timely communication with the other audit teams, including regular conference calls and written caommunications.

BOATL g Ty

The scope of our audit was influenced by ou- applicatior of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, together with qualitative

considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of cur audit procedures on the individual financial statement
line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on ow professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

15
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£174m (2019: £158m)

0.25% of total assets

In determining our materiality, we have considered financial metrics which we betieve to be relevant
to the primary users of the Company's financial statements. We concluded total assets was the most
televant benchmark to these users. Total assets represents the overall size of the balance sheet
reflecting the level of insurance risk the Company is exposed to and its ability to meet insurance
tiabilities as they fall due.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an approariately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements
exceeds overall mateiiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope of our zudit and the nature and extent of our testing of
account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, tor example in determining sample sizes. Ow perfarmance materiality was 75% of overall
materiality, amounting to £ 13 fer the company financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the histery of misstatements, risk assessment and aggregation visk and the
effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our nermal range was appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified duting our audit above £8.7m (2019 £7.9m} as well as

misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

. Obtaining the Directors’ Going Concern assessment and challenging the rationale for the downside scenarios adopted and material assumptions
made using our knowledge of the Company’s business perfermance, review of regulatory correspondence and obtaining further cortoborating
evidence;

. Considering management's assessment of the regulatory Solvency coverage and liquidity position in the forward looking scenacios considered
which have been driven from the Company’s ORSA;

0 Considering information obtained during the course of the audit and publicly available market information to identify any evidence that would

contradict management's assessment of gning concern tincluding the impacts of COVID-19): and
. Enquiring and understanding the actions taken by management to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19, including review of Board. Risk and Audit
Committee minutes and attendance at Audit Committee meetings.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties refating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

In auditing the tinancial statements, we have conctuded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the company's ability to continue as a going
concern.

Our responsihilities and the 1esponsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern a1e desciibed in the relevant sections of this 1epait.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the finandial statements and our auditors™ ieport thereon. The
ditectors are responsible for the other informatisn. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather information and, accordingly, we do not
expless an audit opinion of, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereen.

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge chtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify an apparent material incousistency o material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to condlude whether there is a material
misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If. based on the work we have performed. we conclude that
thereis a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Ditectors' Report, we also censidered whether the discloswies required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been
included.

Based o ot work undertaken in the course of the audit. the Companies Act 2006 - equires us also to 1eport certain opinions and matters as desciibed below,

CENN N [T EE I B ce it

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and Directors’ report for the year ended
31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has beer prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowtedge and understanding of the company and its ervitonment obtained in the course of the audit. we did not 1dentify any material
misstatements in the Strategic repoirt and Directors’ Report,
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

e ' - . H oot P
As explained maove fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the prepaiation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whethe: due to fraud or
error.

In prepaiing the finandial stetemeits. the ditectors are 1esponsible for assessing the company's ahility to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matterselated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accountirg unless the directors either irtend to liquidate the company orto
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so,

Qur obsectives are to obtain easonable assuiance about whether the financial statrements as a whoie are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or erroi, and to issue an auditors’ repert that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise frem fraud or error and are
considered materiat if. individually or in the aggiegate, they could reasenably be expected to influence the economic dedisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Cur audil testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing technigues. However, it
typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for
testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will vse audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from
which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.fre.org.ukyf
auditersiesponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

This report, including the opinions. has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as & body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We de not. in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown o1 into whose hands it may Lome save wheie expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Lrherregur fd i ERo

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requited to report to you if in our epinion:
. we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require tor our audit; or

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. the financiat statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this 1esponsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the audit committee. we were appointed by the directors on 3 May 2012 to audit the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and subsequent finandial periods. The period of total unintenupted engagement is 9 yeais, covering the years ended 31 December
2012 to 31 December 2020.

Wi Wikion

Philip Watson (Sentor Statutory Auditor)

tor and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoapeis LLP
Chartered Accountants ang Statutory Auditors

London

1 Aprit 2021
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Accounting policies

The Company, a private limited company incot porated and domiciled ir the United Kingdom {"UK"}, transacts life and general and health reinsurance in
the UK, Ireland, Fiance and Canada. The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented. unless otherwise stated.

(A) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with inteinational accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 {IFRS) and the legal requirements of the Companies Act 2005. The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
insttuments) at fait value through profit or loss.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going conce n basis as explained in the Divectors’ repaort on page 7.

The Comipary is exempt from prepaiing group financial statements by virtue of section 400 of the Companies Act 2006, as it is a subsidiary of an Furopean
Economic Area {"EEA") parent and is included 'n the consolidated financial statements for the Group, i.e. the ultimate parent company, Aviva plc. and its
subsidiaries, jo'nt ventures and associates, at the same date, These financial staternents therefore present information about the Company as an
individual entity.

inaccordance with 1fRS 4, insurance Cantracts , the Company has applied existing accounting practices for insurance contracts, modified as appropriate to
comply with the IFRS framework and applicable standards. Further details are given in accounting policy .

The Company's financial statements are stated in pounds sterling, which is the Company’s functional and presentational curtency. Unless otherwise
noted. the amounts shown in these financial statements are in millions of pounds sterling ("£m™}.

New standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that have been adopted by the Company

The Company has adopted the following amendments to standards which became effective for the annual reporting period beginning on 1 January 2020.
The amendments have been issued and endorsed by the EU and do not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

il Amendments fo References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Stanaards (published by the IASB in March 2013)

iy Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations (published by the (ASB in October 2018)
il Amendment to fAS | and IAS 8. Definition of material (published by the IASB in October 2218)

vl interest Rote Benchmark Reform: Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 35 and IFRS 7 (published by the 1AS8 1n October 2013)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company

The following new standards and amendments to existing standards have been issued, are not yet effective for the Company and have not been adopted
eally by the Company:

fil JFRS 17, insuronce Contracts
In May 20i7, the IASB published IFRS 17, Insurance Controcts, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 that was issued in 2005. [FR5 17 applies to ali
types of insurance contracts as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features, In contrast to the
requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering of previous local accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a compiehensive and
consistent approach to insurance contracts. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by a specific adaption for contracts with direct
participation features {the variable fee approach) and a simplified approach (the premium allocation approach] mainly for short-duiation contracts.

The main features af the new accounting madel for inswance contiracts are as follows: the measurement of the present value of future cash flows
incorporating an explicit risk adjustment and remeasured at each reporting petiod (the fulfilment cash flows); a contractual service margin that is
equal and opposite to any day vne gain in the fulfilment cash flows of a gioup of contracts, representing the unearned profit of the insuiance
contracts to be recognised in profit or loss over the service period (toverage period): the presentation of insurance revenue and insurance service
expenses in the statement of comprehensive income based on the concept of insurance services provided during the period; and extensive
disclosures to provide information on the recognised amoumnts from insurance contracts and the nature and extent of risks arising from these
contracts.

On adoption IFRS 17 will significantly impact the measurement and presentation of the contracts in scope of the standard. Following amendments
to the standard published in June 2020, it is now expected that the standard will apply to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023. The final standard remains subject te endorsement. Following departure from the £ and the end of the transition period in December 2020,
the Company will he subject to IFRS as endorsed by the UK. The UK endorsement process has commenced and we expect it to complete in time for
tne 1 January 2023 effective date.

ol ITRS &, Ninancial Instruments
In September 2016, the IASB published amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts that addressed the accounting consequences of the application
of IFRS 9 to insurers prior to implementing IFRS 17. The amendments introduce two options for insurers: the defenal approach and the overlay
approach. The defertal approach provides an entity, if eligible, with a tempoiary exemyption frem applying IFRS 9. The overlay approach allows an
entity taremaove frem profit or loss the effects of seme of the accounting mismatches that may occur before the new insurance contracts standard is
applied. The Company has met the eligibility 1equirements of the deferral approach as set out below and has vpted to apply this defenal fiom 1
lainuary 2018. The Campany has however heen requited to apply the additional disclosure requirements of IFRS 9 which are set oul in rote 9.

Eligihility for the deferral appreach was hased on an assessment of the Company's liabilities as at 31 December 2015, in accerdance with the date
specified in the amendments to ITRS 4. At this date the Company’s liabilities connected with insurance exceeded 30% of the cariying amount of the
Company's total lisbilities. The Company's total liabilities in the statement of financial position at this date weie £3.690 million. and included £3.649
million liabilities connected with insurance contiacts within the scope of IFRS 4.
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Accounting policies (continued)

In December 2020, the EU endorsed the IASB's Amendments to ITRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Deferral of ITRS 9. This extends the fixed expiry date for the
temporary exemption far insurers from applying IFRS & from 1 January 2021 until 1 January 2023, to align the effective dates of iFRS 8 Financial
tnstruments with IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 8 on the Company’s financial statements wili be largely dependent on the interaction with the new insuiance
contracts standard. IFRS 17. As such. it is not possible to fully assess the eftect of the adoption of IFRS 9, Financial Instiuments. IFRS 9 has been
endorsed by the EL.

IFRS 9 incorporates new classification and measurement requirements for financial assets, the introduction of an expected credit loss impairment
model which will replace the incurred loss model of 1AS 39, and new hedge accounting reguirements. Under IFRS 9, all financial assets will be
measured at either amortised cost or fair value. The basis of classification will depend on the business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. The standaid retains most of 1AS 39's requitements for financial liabilities except for those designated at farr
value thraugh profit or loss whereby that part of the fail value changes attributable to own credit is to be recognised in other compiehensive income
instead of the income statement. The hedge accounting requirements ate more closely aligned with risk management practices and follow a mare
principle based approach.

The following new standards and amendments to existing standards have been issued, are not yet effective and are not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements:

1) Amendments to IFRS 1€ Leases: COVID-19 refated rent concessions
Published by the IASB in May 2020. The amendments are effective for annual reporting beginning on or after 1 June 2020 and have been endorsed
by the B4,

tir) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2: Amendments to (FRS G, 145 39, 1FRS 7 1FRS 4 and IFRS 16
Published by the IASE in August 2020. The amendments are ettective for annual repoting beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and have not yet
been endorsed by the EU.

{B) Critical accounting policies and the use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the Company to select accounting policies and make estimates and assumptions that affect items
reported in the income statement, statement of financial position, other primary statements and notes to the financial statements.

Critical accounting policies
The major areas of judgement on policy application are considered to be on msurance contract liabilities {set out in accounting poticy i),
Use of estimates

All estimates are based on management’s knowledge of current facts and circumstances, assumptions based on that knowledge and their predictions of
future events and actions. Actual results may ditfer frem those estimates, possibly significantly.

The table below sets cut those items considered particularly susceptibie to changesin estimates and assumptions, and the selevant accounting policy and
note disclosures.

Item Critical accounting estimates Accounting pelicy | Note

Measurement of insuiance liabilities Principal assumptions used in the calculation of tife insurance 1415
liabilities include those in respect of annuitant mortality, expenses.
valuation interest rates and ciedit default alfowances on corporate

bonds and other non-sovereign credit assets.

Piincipal assumptions used in the caleulation of general insurance
and heatth liabilities include the discount rates used in determining
our latent claim and structu ed settlements liabilities, and the
assumption that past claims expelience can be used as a basisto
project future claims (estimated using a range of standard actuarial
claims projection techniques).

{C} Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange 1ate prevailing at the date of the transactions. Gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions, and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the
income statement.

Translation differences on menetary financial assety measured at fait value and designated as held at fail value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") are
inciuded in foreign exchange gains and losses in the income statement. Tianslation differences on non-monetary items. such as equities which are
designated as FVTPL, are reported as part of the fair value gain o1 loss Translation differences on assets held at amortised cost are included in foreign
exchange gains and losses in the income statement.

{D) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset o1 paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaclion between market participants at the
measurement date, 1egardless of whether that price is ditectly observable or estimated using another valuation techiigue. This presumes that the
transaction takes place in the principat {or most advantageous! market under curtent market conditions. Fair value is a market-based measwe and in the
absence of obseivable market prices in an active market, it is measured using the assumptions that market paticipants would use when pricing the asset
o ability



Aviva International Insurance Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2020

Accounting policies {continued)

The fair value of a non-financial asset is determined based on its highest and best use from a market participant's perspective. When using this approach,
the Company takes into account the asset’s use that is physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the tair vatue of the consideration
given or received. In certain ciicumstances, the tair value at inftial recognition may differ from the transaction price. If the fair value is evidenced by
compariscn with other observable current market transactions in the same ‘nstrument [i.e. without modification or repackaging), or is based cn a
valuation technigue whose variables include only data from observable markets, then the difference betweer the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price is recognised as a gain or loss in the income statement. When unobservable market data has a significant impact on the valuation of
financial instruments, the difference between the fair value at mitiat recognition and the transaction price is not recognised immediately in the income
staterment. but deferred and recognised in the income statement on an appioptiate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the
valuation is supperted wholly by observable market data or the transaction is closed out or otherwise matured.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair vatue has a bid price and an ask price. the price within the bid ask spread that is most representative of fair value
in the circumstances is used to measure fair value,
(E} Product classifications

Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk if, and only if, an insured event could cause an insurer to make significant
additional payments in any scenario. excluding scenarios that lack commercial substance, at the inception of the contract. Such contiacts remain
instrance contracts until all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire. Contracts can be seciassified as insurance contracts after inception if policy
features are met and insurance risk becomes significant.

As noted in policy A above, insurance contracts in general continue to be measured and accounted for under existing accounting practices at the date of
transition to IFRS |“grandfatheied”) or the date of the acquisition of the entity, in accordance with {FRS 4. IFRS accounting for insurance contracts in UK
companies was grandfathered at the date of transition to IFRS and determined ir accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice issued by the
Assaciation of British Insurers {"ABI"! {subsequently withdrawn by the ABI in 2015).

(F} Premiums written
(i) Premiums written - General Business

General insurance premiums written reflect business incepted during the year, and exclude any sales-based taxes o1 duties o levies. Unearned premiums
are those proportions of the premiumes wiitten in a year that relate ta petiods of 1isk after the statement of financial position date. Premiums are earned
over the life of the contract in line with incidence of risk. Uneamed premiums are calculated on either a daily or monthly pro rata basis. Premivms on
reinsurance assumed are 1ecognised as revenue in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into
account the produrt classitication of the reinsured business,

{if)}  Premiums written - Long term Business

Long-term husiness premiums are recognised as income when receivable under the terms of the underlying treaties to which they relate.
(G) Other fee and commission income

All other fee and commission income are recognised over time as the services are provided.

(H} Netinvestmentincome

Investment income consists of dividends and interest far the year, realised gains and losses. and unrealised gains and losses on fair value through protit ar
loss investments. Interest income is 1ecognised as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the investment.

A gain ot loss on a financial investment is only tealised on disposal or transfer, and is the difference between the proceeds received, net of transaction
costs, and its original cost or amortised cost, as appropriate.

Unrealised gains and losses. arising on investments which have not been derecognised as a result of disposal o1 transfer, repiesent the difference between
the carrying value at the year ond and the carrying value at the pravious year end or purchase value during the yeat, less the reversal of previously
recognised unrealised gains and losses in respect of disposals made during the year.

(1)  Insurance contract liabilities

insurance contract vabilities relate to reinsw ance assurmed by the Company.

Claims

Long -lerm business claims rellect the cost of alf claims arising during the year  including claims handling costs.

General insurance and health claims incunred include all losses oconring during the year, whether reported or not, related handling costs. a reduction for
the vatue of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous yeals.

Claims handiing costs include internal and external costs incurred in connection with the negotiation and settlement of claims. Internal costs include all
direct expenses of the claims department and any part of the general administrative costs directly attiibutable to the claims function.

Long-term business provisions

Under current IFRS 1eguirements, insurance liabilities are measuied using accounting policies consistent with those adopted previously under existing
accounting practices. The Company has edopted Financial Reporting Standard 27 Life Assurance (FRS 27) which was issued by the UK's Accounting
Standards Board in December 2004 1subsequently withdraw in 2015}, for Fabilities relating to such contracts, which adds to the requirements of IFRS but
does rotvary them in any way.

Caleulation of the long-term business provisions are based o regulataty requirements prior to the adoption of Solvency [l and represent a determination
within a1ange of possible outcomes, where the assumptions used in the calculations depend on the prevailing ciicumstances. The principal assumptions
are disclosed in note 15.
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For non-profit funds, the liabilities are calculated using the gross premium valuation method. This method uses the amount of contractual premiums
payable and includes explicit assumptions for interest and discount rates, mortaiity and morblidity. persistency and future expenses. These assumptions
are set on a prudent basis and can vary by contract type and reflect current and expected future experience. These estimates depend upon the cutcome of
future events and may need to be 1evised as circumstances change. The liabilities are based on the UK regulatory requirements prior to the adoption of
Solvency Il. adjusted to temove certain regulatory reserves and margins in assumptions, notably for annuity business.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, ar assessment is made of wnether the recognised long torm business provisions are adequate, using curtent estimates of future
cash flows. If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of the liabilitics (less related asscts) is isufficient in tght of the estimated cash flows. the
deticiency 1s recognised in the iIncome statement by setting up an additional provision it the statemoent of iinanciat position.

General insurance and health provisions
Outstanding claims provisions

General insurance and health outstanding claims provisions are hased on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the
statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling costs. Significant delays are experienced in the
notification and settlement of certain types of general insurance claims, particularly in respect of liability business, including environmental and pollution
exposures, the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the statement of financial pesition date. As such. booked claim provisions for
general insurance and health insurance are based on the best estimate of the cost of future claim payments plus an explicit allowance for risk and
uncertainty. Any estimate represents a determination within a range ot possibie outcomes Further details of estimation techniques are given in note 15

Provisions for latent claims and claims that are settled an an annuity Lype basis such as structured setilements are discounted in the relevant currency at
the reparting date, having regatd to the expected settlerment dates of the claims and the nature of the liabilities. The discount rale is set at the slatt of the
accounting perfod with any change in rates between the start and end of the accounting pericd being reflected below as a change in insurance liahilities.
The sange of discount 1ates used is described in note 15

Qutstanding claims provisions are valued net of an allowance for expected future recoveries. Recaoveries include non-insutance assets that have been
acquired by exercising rights to salvage and subrogation under the terms of insurance contacts. Where materfal, anticipated recoveries are disclosed
under receivables and not deducted from cutstanding claims provisicns.

Provision for unearned premiums

The proportion of written premiums, gross of commission payable to intermediaries, attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision fo
unearned premiums. The change in this provision is taken to the incame statement as 1 ecognition of revenue over the period of risk.

Liability adequacy

At each reperting date. the Company reviews its unexpired risks and canies out a liability adequacy test for any overall excess of expected claims and
deferred acguisition costs over unearned premiums, using the current estimates of future cash flows under its contracts, after taking account of the
investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of its insurance
liabilities (less related deferred acquisition costs) is insufficient in light of the estimated future cash flows, the Company recognises the deficiency in the
income statement by setting up a provision in the statement of financial position.

Other assessment and levies

The Company is subject to varicus periodic insurance-related assessments or guarantee fund levies. Related provisions are established where thereis a
present obligation |legal or constructive; as a 1esult of a past event. Such amounts are not included within insurance liabilities but are included under
"other liabilities” in the statement of financial position.

{J} Reinsurance

The Company assumes teinsurance in the normal course of business, with retention limits varying by line of business. Premiums on reinsurance assurmed
are recognised as revenue in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, laking into account the product
ctassification of the reinsured business.

Reinsurance related to long-duration conti acts is acconnted for over the life of the undetlying reinsured policies, using assumptions consistent with those
used lo account for these policies

Where general insurance liabilities are discounted, reinsurance on these contracts are alse discounted using consistent assumptions,

Ctaims reimbursed are presented on a gross basfs in the income statement and statement of financial positior as appropriate.

(K} Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset o1 partof a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised whete:
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expited;

the Company retzins the tight to receive cash flows trom the asset, but has assumed an oblipation to pay them in full without material delay to
athird party under a “pass-through™ arrangement: or

- the Company has transfeired its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, ol has neither transferred not retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contiol of the asset.

Afinancial liability is detecognised when the obligation under tae liability is discharged or cancelled, o1 expires.
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{L) Receivables and other financiat assets

Receivables and other financial assets. including deposits held by tedants, are recognised initially at their fair velue. Deposits held by cedant undertakings
represent funds withheld under the terms of the quota share reinsurance arrangements, and in accordance with those annangements aje lemeasured to
reflect the relevant underlying asset and liability fair values within the cedants

Subsequent te initial measurement all other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for
impairment,

Leans due from Group operations

Loans with fixed maturities are recogrised when cash is advanced to borrowers. These loans aie carried at their unpaid principa: balances and adjusted
for amertisation of premivm ot discount. non-tetundable loan fees and related direct costs These amounts are deferred and amortised over the life of the
loan as an adjustment to loan yield using the effective interest rate method. Loans with indefinite future fives are carved at unpaid principal basances.

To the extent that a loan is considered to be uncollectable, it is written down as impaired through the income statement. Any subsequent 1ecoveries are
credited to the income statement.

Impairment

The Company reviews the carrying value of its investments on a 1egular basis. If the carrying value of an investment is greater than the recoverable
amount, the carrying value is reduced through a charge to the income statement in the peried of impairment.

Reversals of impairments on any of these assels are only recognised where the decrease in the impairment tan be objectively related o an event
occurring after the write-down (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), and are not recognised in 1espect of equity instiuments.

(M} Payables and other financial liabilities

Payables and other financial liabilities, excluding derivatives. are recognised initially at their fals value and are subsequentiy measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

(N} Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include ovel the courter credit swaps that derive their value fiom fluctuations in the credit worthiness of a baskel of
European listed corporates.

Alt derivatives are initially recognised in the statement of financial position at their fair value, which usually represents their cost. They are subsequently
remeasured at theii fair value. with the method of recognising movements in this value depending on whether they are designated as hedging instruments
and. if so, the nature of the item beirng hedged. The Campany has not designated any derivatives as hedging instturments and they are therefore treated as
derivatives held for trading. Their fair value gains and losses are recognised immediately in net investiment income. Fair values are obtained from quoted
market ptices or, if these are not available. by using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or option pricing models. All derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair values are positive and as liabilities when the fair values are negative. Piemiums pald for derivatives are recorded as an
asset on the statement of financial position at the date of purchase, 1epresenting their fair value at that date.

Derivative contracts may be traded on an exchange or over-the-counter ["OTC"). Exchange-traded derivatives are standardised and include certain futures
and option contracts. OTC derivative contracts are individually negotiated between contracting parties and include forwards, and swaps. Derivatives are
subject to various risks including market, liquidity and credit risk, similar to those related to the underlying financial instruments. Many OTC transactions
are contracted and documented under International Swaps and Derivatives Association master agreements or theh eguivalent, which are designed to
provide iegally enforceable set oft in the event of default, reducing the Company's exposure to credit risk.

The notional or contractual amounts associated with derivative tinancial instruments are not recorded as assets or liabilities or the statement of financial
position as they do not represent the fait value of these transactions. These amounts are disclosed in note 25,

Ihe Company has collateral agreements in place with relevant counterparties. Accounting policy O below cove:s collateral, both received and pledged, in
respect of these derivatives.

{0) Collateral

The Company receives and pledges collaterat in the form of cash or non cash assets in respect of stock lending transactions. certain derivative contracts
and leans, in order to reduce the credit risk of these transactions. The amount and type of collateral 1equired depends on an assessment of the credit risk
of the counterparty.

Collateral received in the form of cash, which is not legally segregated from the Company, is recognised as an asset in the statement of financiat position
with a cerresponding liability for the repayment in financial liabilities. Howeve: . where the Company has a curiently enforceable legal right of set-off and
the ability and intent to net settle, the collateral liability and associated derivative balances are shown net. Nen-cash collateral received is not recegnised
in the statement of financial position unless the transfer of the collateral meets the derecognition criteria from the perspective of the transferor. Such
coliateral Is typically recognised when the Company either {a) sells or re-pledges these assets in the absence of a defauit, at which point the ctligation to
return this collateral is recognised as a lability; or (b} the counterparty to the arrangement defaults. at which point the collateral is seized and recognised
as an asset.

Collateral pledged in the form of cash which is tegally segregated from the Company is derecognised fiom the statement of financial position with a
correspending receivable recognised for its 1eturn. Non-cash collateral pledged is not derecognised fiom the statement of financial position unless the
Company defaults on its obligations under the 1elevant agiesment, and therefore continues to be recognised in the statement of financial position within
Lhe appiopriate asset classification.

(P} Deferred acquisition costs

Costs relating to the acquisition of new business for insurance are deferied Lo the extent that they are expected Lo be 1ecovered out of futwe margins in
revenues on these contracts.

Where such business is reinsued. an approprrate proportion of the deferied acquisition costs ‘DACY is attiibuted to the reinsumer. and treated as a
separate Liability,



Aviva International Insurance Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2020

Accounting policies (continued)

Deferred acquisition costs are amortised over the period in which the related revenues are earned. The reinsurers’ share of deferied acquisition costs is
amortised in the same manner as the underlying asset. Deferred acquisition costs are reviewed by category ot business at the end of each reporting period
and are written off where they are ne longer considered 1ecoverable.

Q) Statement of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand, deposits held at call with banks, treasury bilis and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Such investments are
those with less than three months” maturity from the date of acquisition, or which are redeemable on demand with only an insignificant change in the’r
fair values.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents also include bank overdrafts, which are included in payables and other
financial liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Operating cash flows

Purchases and sales of financial investments are included within operating cash fiows as the putchases are funded from cash flows associated with the
arigination of insurance contracts, net of payments of related benefits and claims.

(R} Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more prabable than not that an
outflow of resources embodying econemic benefits will be required to settle the ohligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made.

The amount recorded as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the present obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is the present value of the expected expenditure, Provisions are not recognised for future
aperating losses.

Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbuised. for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The Company recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the cxpected benefits to be detived from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed if there is a possible future obligation as a result of a past event, or if there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event but either a payment is not probable or the amount cannot be reasonably estimated.

{$) Income taxes

The current tax expense is based on the taxable profits for the year, after any adjustments ir respect of prier years, Tax. inciuding tax relief for losses if
applicable. is allocated over profits befare taxation and amounts charged or credited tc components of other comprehensive income and equity as
appropriate.

Provisicn is made for deferred tax liabilities, or credit taken for deferred tax assets, using the liability method, on all material temporary differences

hetween the tax bases of assets and liakilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

The1ates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial positior date are used to value the deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets ale recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised. Where there is a history of tax losses, deferred tax assets are only recognised in excess of deferred tax liabilities if there is convinaing evidence
that future nrofits will be available.

Deferred tax is provided on any tempoiary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred taxes are not provided in respact of any temporary differences arising from the initial recegnition of goedwill, or from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit i loss at the time of the
transaction.

Current and deferred tax relating to items recogpised in othe: comprehensive income and directly in equity are similarly recognised in othe
comprehensive income and directly in equity tespectively, except for the tax consequences of distiibutions from certain equity instiuments, to be
recognised in the income statement. Deferred tax refated to any fair value re-measurement of available for sale investments, owner-occupied propeities,
pensions and other post-retirtement obligations and other amounts charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income is recognised in the
statement of financial position as a deferred tax asset or liability.

(T} Share capital
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residua’ interest in the assets of an entity after deducting alt its liabilities, Accordingly, a financial
mstrument is treated as equity if:

il thete is no contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets o1 to exchange financial assets o1 liahilities on terms that may be
unfavourable; and

it the instrument is a non-derivative that contains no contractual obligation 1o deliver a variable number of shares o1 is a derivative that will be
settled only by the Company exchanging a fixed amount of cash o1 other assets for afixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Accounting policies {continued)

Dividends

Intetim dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in eqguity in the period in which they are paid. Final dividends on these shares are 1ecognised when
they have been approved by the Board.

(U} Pensions

The Company has no employees. however it is one ot 2 numbe- of companies in the Group being charged tor statt participating in pension schemes in the
UK. Full disclosure of the Group's pension schemes is giver in the Annual Report and Accounts ot Aviva plc.
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Income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Note 2020 2019
£m fm
Income ?
Gross written premiurns 10,886 10,645
Premiums written, net of reinsuiance F 10,886 10,845
Net change in provisions for uneained premiums {49) {435}
Net earned premiums P& 10,837 10410
Fee and commission income G 22 11
Net investment incemedlexpense) H 3,528 6.382
14,387 16,803
Expenses 3
Claims and benefits paid. net of recoveries from reinsurers J (5,984) {6.627)
Changeininsurance liabilities. net of 1einsurance J {7,593} 17,028}
Fee and commission expense {1,753) 11,958}
Other expenses (19 16}
(15,349) {15,629}
{Loss)/profit before tax (962) 1,174
Tax viedit; (charge) S&T 217 (223)
{Loss}/profit for the year (745) 951

The accounting policies (identified alphabetically) on pages 18 to 24 and notes (identified numericailyl on pages 29 to 54 a:e an integral part of the financial
statements,
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Balance at 1 January 2019

Profit/{loss) tor the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
Dividends paid

Balance at 31 December 2019

Profit/floss] for the year

Total comprehensive income/(ioss} for the year
Dividends paid

Balance at 31 December 2020

Note Qrdinary Retained Total
Share earnings equity
Capital
£m £m Em
780 2,362 3,142
| — 951 951
951 951
2 [190i {190)
780 3,123 3,903
— (745) (745)]
— (745) (745)
8 — (515) (515)
780 1,863 2,643

The accounting policies (identitied alphabeticallyl on pages 18 te 24 and notes ‘identified numetically) on pages 29 1o 54 are an integral part of the financial

statements.
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Statement of financial Position
As at 31 December 2020

Notes 2020 20159
fm Em
Assets
Receivabyes and other financial assers L&1D 68,201 61,816
Deferred acquisition costs P&11 479 461
Prepayments and accrued income 11 _ 1
Current tax assets 5,18 125 -
Cash and cash equivalents 0&22ib) 621 1,058
Total assets 69,426 £3,336
Equity
Ordinary share capital T&12 780 780
Retained earnings 13 1,863 3,123
Total equity 2,643 3,903
Liabilities
Gross insurance labilities 141415 66,568 L8861
Current tax liabilities 5&18 - 360
Payables and other financial liabiliries 11419 214 210
Other liabilities W& 70 1 2
Total liabilities 66,783 59,433
Total equity and liabilities 6%,426 63,33

The financial statements were appioved by the Board of directors on 1 April 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

P L Mylet

Director

The accounting policies fidentified alphabeticallyr on pages 18 to 24 and notes lidentified numericaliyi on pages 29 to 54 ae an integial part of the financiat
statements.
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

MNotes 2020 2019
£m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 22ta) 348 448
Tax paid {270} 1136}
Total net cash generated from operating activities 78 312
Cash flows used in financing activities
Dividends paid 8 (515) [190]
Total net cash used in financing activities (515) 1190]
Total net{decieasel/increase in cash and cash eguivalents (437) 122
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1,058 936
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 221b] 621 1,058

The accounting policies (identifled alphabetically) on pages 18 to 24 and notes ‘identified numerically) on pages 29 to 54 are an integrat part of the financial
statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Exchange rates

Assets and liabilities have been translated at the following year end rates:

2020 2019
Euro 1.1172 1.1802
Canadian Dolla 1.7415 1.7179
2. Details of income
Note 2020 2019
£m im
Gross written premiums
Long term insurance business 6,897 5,435
General insutance and health 1A iv) 3,989 5110
10,886 10,845
Net chanpe in provisiens for unearned premiums lalchiv) {49) (435)
Net earned premiums 10,837 10,410
Fee and commission income
Other fee income 22 11
Total revenue 10,859 10,421
Net investment income
Interest and similar incame
From financial instruments designated as othet than trading 3 5
From deposits with ceding undertakings 3,546 6,399
3,549 6,404
Other income from investments designated as trading
Reatised losses on disposals (31) {43)
Uniealised gains and losses 4 15
Losses arising in the year (27) 1281
Income from Group undertakings
Netinterestincame 6” 6
Other investment expenses — -
Net investment income/(expenses) 3,528 6,387
Total income 14,387 16,803

Gross written premiums in 2020 of £10.886 million (2019: £10.845 mufiton; are in respect of the quota share reinsurance agreements entered into between the
Company and othel Group subsidiar-es, additional details on the impacts of these transactions s provided in note 2elailii).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued}

3. Details of expenses

Note 2020 2019
fm £m
Claims & benefits paid
Claims and benefits paid to policyholders an fong-term business 3,682 371
Claims and benefits paid to policyholders on general insuance 14{cifii) 2,302 2,506
Claims & benefits paid - total 5,984 6,627
Change in insurance liabilities
Change in insurance liabitities  long term business 14¢b1iiii) 7,330 6.156
Change ininsurance liabitities - general inswance 14(c i) 263 872
Change in insurance liabilities - totat 7,593 7,028
Fee and commission expense
Commission expenses T42 709
Change in deferred acquisition costs 11 {17) {114)
Other acquisition costs 1,028 1,363
1,753 1,958
Other expenses
Other expenses 19 16
19 16
Total expenses 15,349 15,629
4, Employee information

The Company has no employees (2019 rid}. All employees are employed by a fellow subsidiary undertaking ol Aviva plo, Aviva Fmployment Services Limited.
Disclosures relating to employee remuneration and the average numbei of persons employed are made in the financial statements of Aviva F mployment
Services Limited. The Company is recharged with the costs of the staff provided by Aviva Employment Services Limited.

5.  Directors’ remuneration
Messis Muir. Non-Fxecutive Director and Needleman. Independent Non-Fxecutive Ditector were appointed to the Board on 21 September 2020.

Ms Buttigieg. Mr Muir and Mr Mylet were remune ated during the period by Aviva Employment Services Limited, a fellow subsidiary of Aviva pic. Mr Muir was
remunerated for his services 1o the Group as a whole. Mr Muii was not remunerated for his services as a director of the Company and the amount of time
spent performing his duties is incidental to his role across the Group.

Ms Buttigieg and Mi Mylet's remuneration ts disclosed within the aggregate of key management compensation in note 26(b].

The fees for Messrs Howe, Needleman, Thoresen, Williams and Wright are paid for and borne by the Company. Mr Howe resigned from the Board on 2% July
2020 and continues to serve as a Non-Executive Ditector of Aviva Life Holdings UK Limited and its subsidiaries. which are also subsidiaries of Aviva plc, and
this 15 disclosed in the financial statemoents of those companies.

The emoluments i respect of Ms Buttigiog and Messrs Howe, Mylet, Noedleman, Thoresen, Williams and Wiight ate shown in the table below:

2020 7018
£'000 £'000
Aggregate emoluments 1,083 1,081
1,083 1,081

During the year, none of the ditectors (2019 nif) accrued retirement benefits under monrey purchase pension schemes in respect of qualifying services.

During the yeat, two of the directors {2019; two) exercised share options, and twe of the directors (2019 two) received shares under long teim incentive
schemes.

The details of the highest paid director are as foliows:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Aggregate emoluments 399 408
399 408

During the year the highest paid director exercised share options and received shares under long term incentive schemes.



Aviva International Insurance Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2020
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6.  Auditors’ remuneration

The tetal temuare ation payable by the Campany, excluding VAT 1o its auditors, PricewaterthouseCoopers LLP, is as follows:

2020 2019

£'000 £000

Fees payable to PwC LLP for the statuloy audit of the Company’s firancial state nents 192 180
Audit related assuiance services 240 240
432 430

Foes payable for audit related assurance include fees in relation to the audit of the Solvency ! regulatory returns for 2020 and 2019,

The Company is exempt under 51 2008489 from the obligation to disclose fees in tespect of 'Other services' as the Company is a subsidiary of Aviva ple, which
prepares consclidated financial statements, Fees paid to the Company’s auditors, Pricewatel houseCoopers LLP and its associates for services other than the
statutory audit and audit related assurance services of the Company and other Group undertakings are disclosed in the consolidated accourts of Aviva ple.

Audit fees are payable by Aviva Central Services UK Limited. a fellow Group company, and rechaiged as appropriate to the Company and fellow Group

companies,

T, Tax

{a} Tax credit/(charge) to the income statement

it Thetotal tax credit/{charge) comprises:

Note 2020 2019
£m £m
Cuwrrent tax
For this vear 216 1223)
Prior period adjustments 1 -
217 {223)

Total tax charged to the income statement

(b} Tax charged/credited to other comprehensive income

Thete was no tax charged or credited to other comprehensive income in either 2020 or 2019,

{¢) Taxreconciliation

The tax on the Company’s profit before tax differs from the thecretical amount that would asise using the tax rate of the United Kingdom as follows:

Note 2020 2019

tm £m

{Lossijprofit betore tax (962} 1,174
Tax calculated at standard UK corporation tax 1ate of 19% (2019 19%) 183 {223)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 1 —
Movement in deferred tax not recognised 31 _
HED 217 {223

Tax charged for the year

Buring 2020, the reduction in the UK corporation tax 1ate that was due to take effect from 1 April 2020 was cancelled and as a 1esult, the 1ate has remained at
19%. In the Budget of 3 Maich 2021 the UK Government announced that the UK corporation tax ate will increase to 25% from 1 April 2023. As of 31 December
2020, this measure had not been substantively enacted. As the Company has no deferred tax assets or liabilities at the year end. there 1s no impact on the

Company's net assets as a consequence of the amendments in the tax rate.
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8. Dividends

Note 2020 2019
£m £m

Ordinary dividends deciared and charged to equity in the year:
Interim 2020 - £3,077 per share, paid on 28 Septemher 2020 13826{a)(iii) 240 —
Interim 2020 - £3,526 pei share, paid on 21 December 2020 13&26{a)(iii) 275 —
Interirm 2019 - £1.795 per share, paid on 13 May 2019 13&261a)(in — 140
Irterim 2019 - £641 pe shate, paid on 17 Deceinber 2019 13&2618)HI — 50
Total dividends for the year 515 190

9.  Fair vaiue methodology

{a} Basis for determining fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the financial statements are categonised within the “fait value hietarchy' described as
foilows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fait value measurement as a whote. The Company’s principal financiai asset is deposits with
ceding undertakings of £67,776 million (2019 £61.388 miflion) as disclosed in note 10, These deposits atise from the quota shae reinsurance agreements
between the Company and other group companies as disclosed in the related party bansactions note 26, and are not subject Lo categorisation under the Fair
Value methodology.

Level 1

Inputs to Level 1 tair values are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that the Company can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2

Inputs to Level 2 fait values are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that arc observable for the asset or Liability, sither directly or
indirectly. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, a Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the instrument. Level 2
inputs include the following:

. guoted prices for simitar assets and liabilities in active market;

. quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active. the prices are not current. o1 price quotations vary
substantialty either over time or amaong market makers, or inwhich little information is released publicly,

. inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability {for example, inlerest rates and yield curves observable at commaonly
guoled intervals, implied volatilities. and credit spreads!; and

. market-correhorated inputs.
Where broker quotes are used and no information as to the observability of inputs is provided by the broker, the investments are classified as follows:

. where the broker price is validated by using internal models with market observable inputs and the values are similar, the investment is classified
as Level 2:and

. in circumstances where internal models are not used to validate broker prices, or the observability of inputs used by brokers is unavailable, the
investment is classified as Level 3.

Level 3

S'gnificant inputs to Level 3 fait values are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs may have been used to measure fair value to the
extent that observabie inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset o1 liability at the
measurement date. However, the fair value measurement objective remains the same, i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a
market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability. Unobservable inputs reflect the assumptions the Company considers that market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability. Examples are equity release and commeicial mortgages. plus private equity investments and private placements.

The majority of the Compdny’s assets and liabilities measwed at fair value aie based on quoted market information o1 observable market data. Where
estimates aie used, these are based on a combination of independent thitd-party evidence and internally developed models. calibrated to market observable
data where possible. Third-party valuations using significant unobservabie inputs validated against Level 2 internally modelled valuations are classified as
Leve! 3, where there is a significant difference between the thiid-paity piice and the nteinally modelled value. Where the difference is insignificant. the
instrument would be classified as Level 2.

{b) Changes to valuation techniques

There were no changes in the valuation technigues duting the year compaied to those desaribed in the 2019 Arnuai report and financial statements

(c) Comparison of the carrying amount and fair values of financial instruments

Set out below is a compaiison of the canying amounts and fair values of financial assets:liahilities:
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2020 2019
Fair value Carrying amount Fain value Carrying amount
£m im
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities {213) (213} {209 1209)

Fairvalue of the following assets and liabilities appioximate to their carrying amounts:
» Receivables and other financial assets

+ Prepayments and acciued income

« Cash and cash equivalents

+ Payables and other financial liabilities

+ Other liabilities

As set out In accounting policy A, the Company has chosen to defer application of {FRS 9 due to its activities being predominantly connected with insurance.
To facilitate comparison with entities applying IFRS 9 in full, the table below splits the Company's financial instruments as at the reporting date between
those which are considered to have contractual terms which are solely payments of principal and interest ("5PFE") on the principal ameunt outstanding
lexcluding instruments held for trading or managed and evaluated on a fair value basis). and all other instruments net falling into this category.

Instruments that do not meet the SPP1 criteria include financial assets that meet the definition of held for trading, financiat assets that are managed and
evaluated on a fair value basis, and instruments with contractual terms that do not give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

2020

. Nen-SPPI - fair

Nate SPPI - fair value value
Total
fm £m £fm

Financial assets

Receivables 10 435 67,776 68,201
Cash and cash equivalents 22tb) - 621 621
Prepayment and accrued income 11i(a) - - —
Total 425 68,397 68,822
2019

. 1 i

Note SPPI - fair value Non SPPvaflzlé
Total
£m £m £m

Financial assets

Receivables 10 428 61,368 61.816
Cash and cash equivalerts 221b: - 1,058 1,058
Prepayment and accrued income 11ta; — 1 1
Total 428 62,447 62,875

There has been a £3million decrease in the fair value of SPPlinstruments, and a £3.250 miflion increase in the fair value of Non-SPPI instruments during the
reporting period
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(d) Fair value hierarchy

An analysis of assets and liabilities measuied at {air value categotised by fair value hieraichy is given helow:

2020
Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £ £m £m

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 25 (212) — — (213)
Total (213) - - (213)
2018
Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
fm £m £m fm

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 25 (209} — - 1209)
Total (209) - - '208)

{e) Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

For financial instruments that are recognised ot {air vaiue on a recuriing basis. the Company determines whether transfers have occuned between levels of
the fai value higrarchy by re-assessing categarisation (based on the lowest evel input that is significant toe the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end

of the 1eporting year.
Transfers between levels of farr velue hierarchy

There have been no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy when compared to 2019,

10. Receivables and other financial assets

Note 2020 7018

£m £m

Loan due from parent company 261a)li 200 200
Amounts duc from parent company 261aiii 6 &
Amounts due from other Aviva Group companies 261ajliii) 2 10
Deposits with ceding undertakings 26(a)ii 67,776 61.338
Receivabie for collateral pledged 217 212
Total as at 31 December 68,201 61,816
Expected to be recovered in less than one vear 4,673 4.859
Expected to be recovered in more than one year 63,528 56,957
68,201 61,816

Deposits with ceding undertakings represent funds withheld for premiums due to the Company under the terms of the guota share reinsurance
arlangernents. More information on the ceding undertakings can be found in the related party transactions note 26.

The receivable for collateral pledged represents £217 million [2019: £212 mullion) for cash collateral pledged to the derivative counterparties against the
dervative liabibities held at vear end.

11. Deferred acquisition costs, prepayments and accrued income

{a) The carrying amount comprises:

2020 2019
£m im

Deferred acauisition costs in respect of:
Insurance contracts - Long term business 78 61
Insurance contracts - General inswance and heatth business 401 400
Total deferred acquisition costs 479 461
Prepayments and accrued income — 1
479 462

Total as at 31 December
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(b) Deferred acquisition cost - movement in the year:

2020 2019
Long term General and long term General and

business  health business  Tetal business  health business Total

£m Em £m fm Fm fm

Carrying amount at 1 January 61 400 461 43 307 350
Acquisition costs deferred during the year 17 1,000 1,017 18 931 1.00%
Amortisation - (1,001) {1,001} — 895 {895
Foreign exchange movements 2 2 - {3} 13)
Carrying amount at 31 December 78 401 479 61 400 461
2020 2012

£m im

Expected to be recovered in less than one year 401 400
Expected to be recovered in mare than one year 78 61
479 461

Of the above total long-term business, £ 78 million 72019 fal mulfioni is expected to be recovered more than one year after the statement of financial position
date. For long-term business where amortisation of the DAC balance depends on projected profits, the amount expected to be recovered is estimated and
actual experience will differ.

DAC on generalinsurance and health business are generally recoverable within ane year.

(¢} Prepayments and accrued income

Prepayments and accrued income are expected to be recognised in the income statement within one year of the statement of financial position date.

12. Ordinary share capital

Details of the Company’s ordinary share capital are as follows:

2020 2019
£m fm

Aliotted, called up and fully paid
78,000 ,2019: 78,000} ordinary shares of £10,000 each T80 780
Ordinary share capital movements 2020 2019
Number of Share capital Number of Share capital
shares £m shares fm
At 1 January 78,000 780 78,000 780
At 31 December 78,600 780 78,000 780

Ordinary shares In issue in the Company rank pari passu. Ali the ordinary shares in issue carry the same right to recelve all dividends and other distributions
declared. madc or paid by the Company.

13. Retained earnings
Note 2020 2019
£m £m
Balance at 1 January 3,123 2.362
Profit/(loss) for the year (745) 951
Dividends paid 8 {515) (190}
Balance at 31 December 1,863 3,123

The Company s required to held sufficient capital to mest acceptable solvency levels based on rules applicable to insurance companies imposed by the PRA.
Its abisity to transfer retained earnings to its pas ent company is thetefore restricted to the extent these earnings form part of regulatery capital -egquitements.
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14. Insurance liabilities

{a) Carrying amount:

ft) fnisurance babifittes igrouss of reinsurancel at 31 December comprised
2020 2019
General Genetal
Long term insurance Long term insurance
business and health Total business  and health Total
£m im £m £m im fm
Long-term business provision 60,578 — 60,578 53,248 — 53,248
60,578 - 60,578 53,248 - 53,7248
Outstanding claims provisions - 3,297 3,297 - 3.215 3,215
Provision for claims incurred but not 1eported - 802 802 - 563 563
Provision arising from liability adequacy tests’ - 1 1 - 7 7
— 4,100 4,100 — 3.785 3,785
Provision for unearned premiums — 1,890 1,890 - 1.828 1,828
Total at 31 Decembet 60,578 5,990 66,563 53.248 5,613 58,861
£ Prouision ans ng fam Labilit, adeguacy tests relates to gerera, nsLrance buzingss only Liasiiit, socquac, tert provisians for Ife cperations, wnere aophcable. are ing uded 1= other hne iteme, Az at 31 Decerrber 2820 truc
peouision 1 Eml 12019 Emil for Ife opesations
(fi) Change ininsurance liabilities 1ecognised as an expense

The purpose of the following tabie is ta reconcile the change in insuance liabilities, net of reinsurance, shown on the income statement, to the change in
insurance liabilities recognised as an expense in the relevant movement tables in this note. The compenents of the reconciliation are the change in provision
for outstanding claims on long-term business {which is not included in a separate movement table], and the unwind of discounting on general insurance
reserves {which is included within finance costs in the Income statement;. For general insutance and health business, the change in the provision for
unezrned premiumsis not included in the reconciliation as, within the income statement, this is included within earned premiums.

Note 2020 2019
£m £m
Long term business
Change ‘n long-term business provision 7,330 6,156
Change in provision for cutstanding claims - -
3 7,330 6.156
General insurance and health
Change in insurance liabilities' 3 262 872
Less: Unwind of discount on Gl reserves and other (49) 125)
213 847
Foreign exchange rate movements 53 173
Tatal change in insurance liabilities 7,596 6.930
1. 2018 nc uoes £22 milion 1 the UK General Insurance and Fealth pusness relaung to a shange  the ciscount rate wsed for cstimat rg lume sum pay merts of vedily nury ¢ ams frem § 000 ta § 205

{b) Long-term business provision

(i) Business description
As noted in the Strategic Report the Comparny has queta share reinsurance anangements with fellow Group subsidiary UK L&P.
i Company practice

Material judgement is requited in calculating the provisions and is exercised particularly through the choice of assumptions, whete discietion is permitted. In
turn, the assumptions used depend on the circumstances prevailing in each of the life funds, Pravisions are most sensitive ta assumptions regarding future
investment 1etums, discount rates, futine bonus rates, motality/moibidity rates and persistency. Where discount rate assumptions are based on cuntent
market yields on fixed interest searities, allowance is mace for default risk implicit in the yields an the unde lying assets,
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(i Mavements

The tollowing mavements have occurred in the gross long-term business provision during the year:

2020 2019
£ £
Carrying amount at 1 January 53,248 47,092
Other movements recognised as an {incomei / expense:
Provisions in respect of new business 2,271 2.507
[xpected change in existing business provisions {1,525} 1965
Variance between actual and expected experience 5,354 3,740
Impact of operating assumption changes 24 1293)
Impact of econamic assumption changes 1,206 1.167
Change in liability recognised as an expense 7,330 6,156
Carrying amount at 31 December 60,578 53.748

For many types of long term business, including unit linked business, movements in asset values are offset by corresponding changes in liabilities, limiting
the net impact on profit.

The expected change in existing business provisions has increased when compared to 2012 mainly due to the amendments to the UK L&F reinsurance
treaties, as discussed in the Strategic Repaort.

The £5,354 million variance between actual and expected experience also primarily refates to the amendments 1o the UK L&P reinsurance treaties (£2.9
billion) as well as demographic and economic variances.

The £1.206 milion impact of economic assumption changes in 2020 incieases the carrying value of insurance liabilities and relates mainly to the fall in risk
lee rates, tesulting in lowet discount rates for valuing annuity business and hence an increase in teserves.

[¢} Generalinsurance and health liabilities
i Provisions for outstonding claims

Detays aoccur in the notification and settlement of claims and a substantial measure of experience and judgement is involved in assessing outstanding
liabilities, the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the staternent of financial position date. The reserves for general insurance and health
business are based on information currently available. However, 1t 1s inherent in the nature of the business written that the ultimate liabilities may vary as a
result of subsequent developments.

Provisions for outstanding claims are established to cover the outstanding expected ultimate liabllity for losses and loss adjustment expenses {LAE] in respect
of all claims that have already occurred. The provisions established cover reported claims and associated LAE, as well as claims incurred but not yet reparted
and associated LAE.

{ii] Discaunting

Outstanding ctaims provisions are based on undiscounted estimates of future claim payments, except for the following classes of business for which
discounted provisions are held:

Aviva Insurance Limited

Class Discount Rate Mean term of liabilities

2020 2019 2020 2019
Latent claims 0.00% to 0.59% 0.8% to1.1% 11 12 years
Reinsuied London Market business 0.00% to 1.45% 0.8% t0 2.1% 9 9 years
Structured settlements 0.29% to 2.23% 1.2% to 2.6%: 35 35 years

Aviva Assurances

Class Discount Rate Mean term of liabilities

2020 2019 2020 2014
Latent claims N/ a N/a N/a N;a
Structured settlements -0.39% t0 0.05% -0.2% t0 0.5% 11 years 11 years

Aviva Canada

Class Discount Rate Mean term of tiabilities
2020 2019 2020 2019
Latent claims 1.13 % 2.20 % 9 years 10 years

Structured settlements N2 N/a 18 years 18 years
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The gross outstanding claims provision before discounting was £4,148 million 1201%: £3,842 milfion;. The period of time which will elapse before the liabilities
are settled has been estimated by modelling the settlement patterns of the underlying claims.

The discount rate that has been applied to latent claims, reinsuwred Londor Market business and structured settlement reserves is based on the relevant swap
curve in the relevant currency having regard to the expecteo settlement dates of the claims. The range of discount 1ates used depends on the duration of the
claims and is given in the table above.

\iEy Movements

The following changes have occurred in the general insurance and health claims provisions during the year:

2020 2019
Total Total
£m im
Carrying amount at 1 January 3,785 2.986
Increase/{Decrease} in estimated claims losses and expenses
incurred in the current year 2,499 2671
Increase/{Decrease} in estimated claims losses and expenses
incurred in priol years 17 1.082
Incuried claims losses and expenses 2,516 3,53
Payments made on clatmsincurred in the current year {1,230) 11,456)
Payments made on claims incurred in prior years {1,104) 11.488)
Recoveries on claim payments 31 38
Claims payments made in the year (2,303} 12,906)
Unwinding of discount 49 25
Changes in claims reserve recognised as an expense 262 872
Foreign exchange rate movements 53 173)
Carrying amount at 31 December 4,100 3,785
liv) Provision for unearned premiums
The following changes have occurred in the provision for unearned premiums reserves (UPR) during the year:
Note 2020 2019
Total Total
£m im
Carrying amount at 1 January 1,828 1,416
Premiums wiitten during the year 2 3,989 5,410
Less: Premiums earned during the year {3,940) 14,975
Change in unearned premium reserve Jecognised as an expense 2 49 435
Foreign exchange rate movements 13 123)
Carrying amount at 31 December 1,890 1,628

{v) Analysis of general insurance and health claims development

The table that follows presents the development of claim payments and the estimated ultimate cost of claims tor the accident years 2012 to 2020. 1he upper
haif of the table shows the cumulative amounts paid during successive years related to each accident year, while the lower section of the table shows the
original estimated ultimate cest of claims and how these oiiginal estimates have increased or decreased. as more infoimation becomes known about the
individual ctaims and overall claim frequency and sevetity.
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£m
Accident year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total

Cumulative claim payments

At end of accident yea - — |156) [52] 1,911} 11,167) (1,220) 11.639) 11.2071
One year later 51 - {218} {162] i2.764) 1,571 (1,756) 12.262%

Two years later 1101 — 1373) 1162) 13.232) {1,764} {1,865)

Three years later 1201 — {373} 11623 3.708) 1.854)

Fous years later 121 - 1373) 11621 3,923}

Five years later 121 1) 373 1162}

Six years later 241 11 1373

Seven years later (24 111

Eight years Later (24

Estimate of ultimate claims

Atend of accident year 28 & 47 153 5,096 2,124 2,162 3473 2,497

One year later 29 7 361 162 5,005 2,073 2,266 3471

Two years later 31 4 373 162 4823 2,128 2.288

Three years later 25 1 373 162 4,847 2,135

Four years later 24 1 373 162 4.858

Five years later 24 1 373 162

Six years later 24 1 373

Seven years latet 24 1

Eight years Later 74

Estimate of ultimate ¢laims 24 1 373 167 4 858 2135 2,798 3471 2,497 15,819
Cumulative payments (24} (1) 1373} (162) 13,923) {1,654} 11,865} {2,262) {1,207, (11,671)
Total undiscounted reserves - - - - 935 281 433 1,209 1,290 4,148
Totaldiscount — — — - (41} - — 13 13 (47}

Present value in the Statement of
Financial Position — — — — 894 281 433 1,206 1,287 4,101

in the loss development table shown above, the cumulative claims payments and estimates of cumulative claims for each accident vear are translated into
sterling at the exchange rates that applied at the end of that accident year.

15. Insurance liabilities methodologies and assumptions
(a) Long-term business

The main method of actuarial valuation of liabilities arising under long-lerm insurance contracts is the grass premium method which involves the discounting
of projected premiums and ciaims.

The gross pramium method uses the amount of centractual premiums payabie and includes explicit assumptions for interest and discount 1ates, martality
and morbidity, persistency aid future expenses. These assumptions can vary by contract type and 1eflect current and expected future experience.

Non-profit business

The valuation of non-profit busiress is based on grandfathered regulatery 1equitements under IFRS 4 prior to the adoption of Solvency i, adjusted to remove
certain regulatory reserves and margins in assumptions. notably for annuity business. Conventional non-profit contracts are valued using gross premium
methods which discount projected tuture cash flows The cash flows ate calculated using the amount of contractual premiums payable. together with explicit
assumptions for investment returns, inflation. discount rates. mortality, morbidity, persistency and future expenses. These assumptions va-y by contract type
and reflect current and expected future experience with an allowance for prudence.

For unit-lirked business the provisions are valued by adding a prospective nonr unit reserve to the bid value of units. 1he prospective non unit 1eserve is
calculated by projecting the future non unit cash flows using prudent assumptions and on the assumption that future premiums cease, unless 1t s mote
onerous to assume that they continue. Where appropriate, allowance for persistency is based on actual experience.
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Discaunt rates

Valuation discount rate assumptions are set with regard to yields on the supporting assets and the peneral level of long-term interest rates as measured by
gitt yieids. An explicit allowance for risk is inciuded by restricting the yields for equities and properties with reterence to a margin over long-term interest rates
ol making an explicit deduction from the yields an corporate bonds, mortgages and deposits. based on historical default experience of each asset class. A
turther margin for risk is then deducted for all asset classes.

Valuation discount - ates for business in the non profit fuads are as follows:

Valuation discount rates

[Gross of investment expenses) 2020 2019
Assurance

life conventionai non profit 0.5% 0.9% to 1.1%

Pensicns coaventional non-profit 0.5% 1.1%
Annuities

Immediate and deferred annuities 0.5%-1.5% 1.1% to 2.3%

Neon unit reserves on unitised business
Life 0.4% 0.5%

Pensions 0.5% 1.1%
Income protection
Active lives 0.5% 1.0%

Claims in payment - level and index linked 0.5% 1.0%

The valuation discount rates are after reduction for risk. but befare allowance for investment expenses. For conventional immediate annuity business, the
allowance fortisk cemprises long term assumptions on a prudent basis for defaults or {in the case of equity release assets) expected losses arising from the
No- Negative-Eguity Guarantee, These allowances vary by asset category and for some asset classes by rating, based on historical default experience of each
asset class. For equity release assets the risk allowances are consistent with those used to determine the fair value of the ascet held in deposits with ceding
undertakings.

The risk allowances made for corporate bonds (including overseas government bonds and structured finance assets), mortgages including healthcare
mortgages. commercial mortgages and infrastructure assets), and equity release equated to 16 bps, 35 bps, and 118 bps respectively at 31 Becember 2020
(2019: 45 bps, 35 bps, and 124 bps respectively.

The total valuation allowance net of reinsurance in respect of corporate bonds and mortgages, including healtheare mortgages but excluding equity release,
was £0.6 billion {2019 £0.6 bitiion) over the remaining term of the portfolic at 31 December 202¢. The total valuation allowance in respect of equity release
assets was £0.5 billion at 31 December 2020 (2018: £6.€ bithan). Total liabilities for the annuity business in NP funds were £18.9 billion at 31 December 2020
(2013 £20.7 biflion).

Fxpenses

Maintenance expense assumptions for non-profit business are genetally expressed as a “per policy” charge set with regatrds to an allocation of current year
expense levels by hroad category of business and using the policy count for in-force business. The assumptions also include an allowance for prudence and
increase by fute expense inflation over the lifetime of each contract. Fxpense inflation is assumed to be in line with RPI, and in line with external
agreements for business administered externally. An additional liability is held if projected per-policy expenses in future years are expected to exceed current
assumptions. Further, explicit pioject expense Liabilities aie held for non-discretionary pioject costs that typically selate to mandatory regulatery
requirements,

Expense-related liabilities are not held where expenses are covered by anticipated future profits in the liability methodology. notably for unit-linked
contracts. Investment expenses are generally expressed as a proportion of the assets hacking the liabilities. A liahility is also Feld In respect of expenses
expected to beincurred which are not attiibutable to cedants,

Mortality

Mortality assumptions for non-profit business are set with 1egard to 1ecert Company experience and general ndustiy trends, The mortal-ty tables used in the
valuation are summal sed below:
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Mortality table used 2020 2019
Assurances

AMOQ/AFOO or TMOS/TFO8 or ELT1S/ELT16 AMOU/AFOD or 1MO8; 1FO8 o1 ELI 15 adjusted

adjusted for smoker status and age/sex for sinoket status and age/sex specific

Non-profit mortality specific factors factors

ACD8, IC94 or reinsurer rates adjusted for ACO08 or IC94 or 1einsurer rates adjusted for
smoker status and age/sex specific  smoker status and age;sex specific factors

Non-profit critical iflness factors
1P06 adjusted by factors derived from cur  CIDA adjusted by factors detived from our
Non-profit PHI inception rares own experience awn experience
CMiR12 adjusted by factors derived from CMIR12 adjusted by factors derived from our
Non-profit PHI recovery rates our own experience own experience
Pure endowments and deferred annuities before vesting AMOO/AF00 adjusted AMOOQ/AFOQ ad}usted
Annuity business after vesting PMAQS HAMWP/PFAO8 HAMWP adjusted, PMADS HAMWP /PFAOB HAFWP adjusted,
plus allowance for future mortality plus atiowance for future mortality
improvement fmprovement
€V3 plus allowance for future mortality CV3 plus allowance for future mortality
Bulk purchase annuities improvement improvement

For the largest portfolio of pensicns annuity business, the underlying mortality assumptions for males are 105.2% of PMAQOS HAMWP adjusted (2019: 105.4% of
PMADS HAMWP adjusted) with base year 2008; for femates the underlying mortality assumptions are 102.7% of PTA08 HAMWP adjusted (2019: 99.5% of PFAOS
HAMWE adjustoed) with base year 2008,

Improvements are based on "CMI_2019 15=7.25) Advanced with adjustments’ (2019: "CMI_2018 i5=7.25) Advanced with adjustments’) with a long-term
impravement rate of 1.5% 12019: 1.75%;) for males and 1.5% [2019: 1.5%) for females, both with an additional improvement for prudence of 0.5% {20191 0.5%)
to all future annual improvement adjustments. The CMI_2019 tables have been adjusted by adding 0.25% (2019: 0.25%) and 0.35% {2019: 0.35%) to the initial
rate of mortality imprevements for males and females respectively (to allow for greater mortality improvements in the annuitant population relative to the
general population on which CMI_2019 is based), and uses the advanced parameters to taper the long-term improvement 1 ates to zero between ages 90 and
115 !the 'core’ parameters taper the long-term impt ovement rates to zero between ages 85 and 110). The tapering apptoach is unchanged from that used at
2019.

I addition, on a significant proportion of individual annuity business, yeal specific adjustments are made to allow for potential selection effects due to the
development of the Erhanced Annuity market and covering possible selection effects fiom pension freedom reforms.

{b} Generalinsurance and health

Outstanding ciaims provisions are estimated based or known facts at the date of estimation. Case estimates are set by skilled claims technicians and
established case setting procedures. Claims technicians apply their experience and knowledge to the circumstances of individual claims. They take into
account all available information and correspondence regarding the circumstances of the claim, such as medical reports, investigations and inspections.
Claims technicians set case estimates according to documented claims department policies and specialise in setting estimates for certain lines of business o1
types of claim. Claims above certain limits are 1eferred to senior claims handlers for estimate authorisation,

The assumptions used in most non-lite actuarial projection techniques, including future rates of claims inflation or loss 1atio assumptions, are implicit in the
historical claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends
may not apply in the future, for example, to reflect one-off occurrences, changes in external or market tactors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic
conditions. levels of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as pertfolic mix, policy conditions and claims handling
procedures in order to arrive at a point estimate for the ultimate cost of claims that 1epresents the likely cutcome, trom a range of possible cutcomes, taking
account of all the uncertainties involved. The range of possible outcomes does not. however, result in the quantification of a reserve range.

The fellowing explicit assumptions are made which could matenatly impact the level of booked net reserves:
Interest rates used to discount latent claim liabihities and structured settlements

The discount rates used in determining latent claim liabilities and structured settlements are based on the relevant swap curve in the relevart currency at the
reporting date, having regard to the duation of the expected settlement of claims. The range of discount rates used is shown in note 144¢)il) above and
depends on the duration of the claim and the 1eporting date. At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a 1% fallin the discount rates used would increase ret
claim reserves by approximately £146 million 2019: £68 million), excluding the offsetting effect on asset values as assets are not hypothecated across classes
of business.

Allewance for tisk ond uncertainty

The uncertainties involved in estimating loss 1esetves are allowed for in the teserving process and by the estimation of explicit reserve uncertainty
distiibutions. The reserve estimation basis for non-life claims reguires all non-life businesses to calculate bocked claim provisions as the best estimate of the
cost of future claim payments, plus an explicit allowance for risk and uncertainty. The allowance foi risk and uncertainty is catculated In accordance with the
requirements of the Company reserving policy, taking into account the risks and uncertairties specific te each line of business and type of claim in that
territory. The sequitements of the Company reserving policy also seek to ensure that the allowance for risk and uncertainty is set consistently across reporting
periads.

The impact of COVID-19 on general insurance gross incurred claims losses inet of the Company's cedants reinsurers’ share of incurred claim losses} is an
estimated benefit of £42 million after allowing for an estimated £200 million of offsetting favourable impacts in other product lines as a result of reduced
economic activity. Claims are primarily as a resuit of disruption to business insured by the Company’s cedants; paittially offset by a reduction in claims
frequency on other product lines. Since the ultimate cost of claims is not known in advance, there are uncertainties involved ir estimating the loss reserves
including those relating to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Lump sum payments in settlement of bodily injury claims decided by the UK courts are calculated in accordance with the Ogden Tables and discount rate.

The Ogden discount 1ate is set by the Lord Chancellor in accordance with the Damages Act 1996 and is applied when calculating the present value of future
care casts and lass of earnings for claims settlement purposes.
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The Lotd Chancellor announced an increase in tne Ogden discount rate on 15 July 2019 from the minus 0.75% set in 2017 to minus 2.25%. The Ogden discount
rate s expected to be reviewed by the Laid Chancellor within five years and potential changes to the rate intioduce uncertainty.

16. Financial guarantees and options
This note details the financial guarantees and options inherent in some of our inswrance contracts.

As a part of their operating activities, UK L&P have provided guarantees and options, including investment return guarantees, ir 1espect of certain leng-term
irsurance products.

{a) UX non-profit business

The UK non-pretit tunds are evaluated by reference to statutory reserving 1ules. which are based on the UK regulatory requirements \grandfathered under
IFRS 4). prior to the adoption of Salvency I, adjusted to remove certain regulatory reserves and margins in assumptions. notably tor annuity business.

Ii] Guaranteed annuity options

UK L&P's non-profit funds have written contracts which contain guaranteed annuity rate options [GAOs). where the policyholder has the optien to take the
benefits fram a policy in the farm of an annuity based on guaranteed conversion rates. Provisicn for these guarantees do not materially differ from a provisien
based on a market-consistent stochastic model, and amounts to £24 million at 31 December 2020 2019: £15 mullion).

{ii) Guaranteed unit price on certain products

Certain pension preducts linked to long-term life insurance funds provide policyholders with guaranteed benefits at retnement o1 death. No additional
provision is made for this guarantee as the investment management strategy for these funds is designed to ensure that the guarantee can be met from the
fund, mitigating the impact of large falls in investment values and interest rates.

17. Effect of changesin assumptions and estimates during the year
Certain estimates and assumpticns used in determining liabilties for insurance contract business were changed during 2020 and had the fellowing effect on

profit recognised for the year, with an equivalent effect on liabilities, This disclosure only shows the impact on liabilities, and does not allow for offsetting
movements in the value of backing financial assets.

2020 2019
Effect on Effect on
profit profit
£m £m
Assumptions
Long term business
Economic assumptions {1,206) 11,167
Persistency rates {4) 120]
Mortality for assurance contracts 12
Martality for annuity contracts 117 293
kxpenses {143) 117
Other aperating assumptions {6} 37
{1,230} (874)
General insurance and health business
Change in discount rate assumptions 49 26
a9 26
Total {(decrease)/increase as aresult of changes in assumptions and estimates (1,181} (8481

The impact of interest rates on long-term business relates primarily to annuities {including any change in credit detault and remvestment risk provisions).

The impact of mortality for annuitant contracts on long term business relates primarily to the UK. In 2020, there has been a reduction in reserves due to
longevity assumptions ansing from:

. Updates to base mortality to reflect recent experience and 1o include the impact of introducing reguia death tracing for heritage Friends Life
busiress of £67 million,

' Updates to the rate of mortality improvements, including moving the Long Term Rate of [uture mortality improvements for males {prior to tapering
at old ages) from 1.75% to 1.5% and moving to CMI 2019 of £60 million;

. Changes to assumptions for anti-selection {net of a consistent change to impaiied lives) following improved aralysis of £121) million

. Allowance for highet future deaths arising from COVID-12 of £7 million
. Other less significant movements of £4 million

In 2019 the impact of mortality for annuitant contracts on long-term business included: updates to the rate of maortality improvements. including the
adoption of CM| 2018, refinements to modelling of bulk purchase annuities, and updates reflecting our recent experience.
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18. Tax assets and liabilities

{a) Current tax

Curtent tax assets recoverable and lisbililies payahile in moie than one year are £216 million ard fnil mitlion (2019 fad riflion ana £33 milfon respectively.

{b) Deferred tax

The Company has no recognised temporary differences, and unrecognised temporary differences of £nil mitlion (2019: £168 mufhion ! carried forward.

19. Payables and other financial liabilities

2020 2019
£m tm
Derivative financial liabilities 213 209
Amounts duc to other Aviva Group Companies 1 1
Total as at 31 December 214 210
Expected to he settled within one year 55 53
Expected to he settled in more than one year 159 157
214 210

20. Other liabilities
2020 2018
£m £m
Other liabilities 1 2
Total as at 31 December 1 2
Expected to be settled within one year 1 2
Total as at 31 December 1 2

21. Contingent liabilities and other risk factors
{a) Uncertainty over claims provisions

Note 15 gives detalls of the methodology and assumptions used in determining the long-term business provision and the estimation technigues used in
determining the general insurance business outstanding claims prowvision including claims related to COVID-19. These approaches are designed to allow for
the appropriate cost of policy-related liabilities, with a degree of prudence, to give a result within the normal 1ange of cutcomes. However, the actual cost of
settling these liabilities may diffel, for example because experience may be worse than that assumed, or future genelral insurance business claims inflation
may differ from that expected, and hence there is uncertainty in respect of these liabilities.

(b) Business interruption

Fer the significant majority of Aviva's UK business intenuption policies, where policy wordings are determined by AlL, cover is based on a specified fist of
diseases. These policies do not cover business interruption due to new and emerging diseases, like COVID 19. Notwithstanding this, legal clarity was required
in terms of the events and the cover provided under some limited and specific business interruption policy wordings where AL is the lead or follow insurer. In
the UK, following the conclusion of the FCA test case in the High Court and Supreme Court appeal, AlL has been paying valid claims promptly, albeit in many
cases continuing to work through the settlement process with clients which will take some time, In setting the reserves for business interruption losses AlL
has prudentty assessed the potential cost of ctarms across all policy wordings. including those where legal uncertainty remains.

fn Canada, there is similar potential exposure to business interruption claims acress a range of differing policy wordings and businesses covered and the
potential level ef exposure has been considered across all policy wordings. The liability in respect of these pelicies is expected te be determined through
various class action suits. To allow for this uncertainty, CGI has taken into account a range of potential outcomes when setting the reserves. Acioss both the
AIL and CGT exposures we expect losses to be mitigated by external reinsurance and have made an appropriate allowances for this within net of refnsurance
reserves. Given the unprecedented circumstances, there 1emains a wide 1ange of potential outcomes inrelation to business interruption losses.

{c) Asbestos, pollution and social environmental hazards

Through its reinsurance arrangement with Aviva Insurance Limited. Aviva Canada and Aviva Assurances, the Company receives general insurance liability
claims. and becomes involved in actual o1 threatened litigation arising therefrom, including claims in 1espect of pellution and other environmental hazards.
Amongst these ate claims in respect of asbestos production and handling in the United Kingdom and Canada. The directors are not aware of any asbestos
exposure from Aviva Assurances,

Given the significant delays that ate experienced in the notificatior. of these claims, the potential number of incidents which they cover and the uncertainties
associated with establishing liability and the availability of reinsurance. the ultimate cost cannot be determined with certainty. However, on the basis of
current information having regard to the level of provisions made for genera: insurance claims and substantial reinsurance cover now in place, the directos
consider that any additional costs aising are not likely to have a material impact on the financial position of the Compeany.
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(d) Regulatory compliance

The FCA and the PRA regulate and authorise the Comunany’s UK business ard in addition monitor the financial 1esources and organisation of the Company as
a whole. The PRA and FCA have broad powers including the autharity to grant, vary the terms of, a1 cancel 2 regulated firm’s authorisation: to investigate
marketing and sales practices; and to require the maintenance of adeguate financial 1esources.

The FCA and PRA operate under the authority of the Bank of England. Autorité de Contrdle Prudentiel et de Résclution (ACPR) in France, has simitar powers to
the UK regulators. and operates under the auspices of the French central bank. Banque de France. The Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions
Canada (OSFliin Canadais an independent agency of the Government of Canada and has similai powers to the UK regulators.

The directers believe that the Company dedicates appropriate resources to its compliance programme, endeavours to respond to regidatory enquirles in a
constructive way, and takes corrective action when warranted. However. alt iegulated financial services companies face the risk that the segulator could tind
that they have faiicd to comply with applicable regulatiors or have not undertaken corrective action as required.

The impact of any such finding could have a negative impact on the Company’s reported results or on its relations with current or potential customers.
Regulatory action against the Company could result in adverse publicity for. o1 negative perceptions regarding, the Company. o could have a material
adverse effect on the business of the Company, its 1esults of operations and/or financial condition and divert management's attention from the day-to-day
management of the business.

(e} Other

In the course of conducting insurance business, the Cempany receives liability claims, and becemces invelved in actual or threatened related litigation. In the
apinion of the directors, adequate provisions have beer established for such claims.

22, Statementofcash flows

[a) The reconciliation of profit / (loss) before tax to the net cash in / (out) flow from operating activities is:
Note 2020 2019
£m im
(Lossy profit before tax (962} 1,174
Adjustments for:
Prefit '{loss) on the sale of:
Derivative liabilities 2 31 43
Fair value (gains)/losses on:
Derivative liabilities 2 (3 (15}
Foreign currency exchange (gains)/losses (4} 4
24 32
Changes in working capitak:
Increase in deferred acquisition costs and prepayments (186) 1116)
Increase in insurance habilities 7,642 7,464
Decrease in other assets and liabilities (6,340) 18,106)
1,286 1758)
Total cash generated from operating activities 348 448

Purchases and sales of financial investments are included in operating cash flows as the purchases are funded from cash flows associated with the origination
of insurance contracts, net of payments of related claims.

(b} Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows at 31 December comprise:

2020 2019

£m £m

Cash equivalents 621 1.058
621 1,058

23. Capital structure

The Company maintains an efficient capital structure from equity shareholder s funds, consistent with the Company's overail risk profile and the regulatory
and ma ket requirements of the business. This note describes the way the Company manages capital and shows how this is structured.

{a} General

IFRS underpins the Company's capital structure and accordingly the capital structure is analysed on this hasis. The Company is required to measuie and
monitor its capital resources on a regultatory basis and to comply with the established Solvency Il Framework Directive, as adopted by the PRA The Company
measutes its capital requitements under the Solvency Il regime, using a Partial Internal Model (PIM) which assesses the 1isks the Company is exposed to.
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ib) Capital management

The primary objective of capital management is to maintain an efficient capital structure, in a manner consistent with ow risk profile and the regulatory and
market requirements of the Company. Capital is a primary consideiation across a wide range of business activities, including tieaty development, pricing,
business planning and asset and liability management. The Company implements the Group’s Capital Management Standard, which sets aut minimum
standards and guidelines over responsibility for capital management including consideration for capital management decisions and requirements for
management information. capital monitoring, reporting, forecasting, planning and overall governance.

In managing its capital. the Company seeks to:

it match the profile of its assets and liabilities. taking account of the risks inherent in the business;

1ii) maintain financial strength to support new business growth and satisfy the requirements of its policyholder s and reguiators;
i) retain financial flexibitity by mamntaining strang liquidity: and

{iv) allocate capital efficiently to suppert growth and repatriate excess capital where appropriate,

The Company considers not only traditicnal sources of capital funding but alternative sources of capital including reinsurance, as appropriate, when
assessing its deployment and usage of capital.

{c) Different measures of capitai

The Campany measuies its capital on a number of different hases. These include measures which camply with the regulatory regime within which the
Company operates and those which the direclors consider appropriate for the management of the business. The measures which the Company uses are:

(i) Accounting basis
The Companyis required to report its1esults on an IFRS basis and ensures that there are sufficient distributable reserves available before paying dividends.
{ii} Regulatory basts

Relevant capital and solvency regulations are used to measure and report the Company's financial strength. These measures are based on Selvency Il which
is a Europe-wide prudential regulatory framework that came into feice on 1 January 2016. The regulatory capitat tests verify that the Company retains an
excess of solvency capital above the required minimum leve! calculated using a 1isk-based capital model. The risk management note {note 24) gives further
details.

Solvency Il "own funds” represents the amount of regulatory capital rescurces that are available to meet regulatory capital requirements under the Solvency
Il regime, and 1s 2 closely monitored metric. At 31 Decomber 2020 the Company's own funds under Solvency 11 were £4,167 million (2018:£4,855 mullion,. The
Company's own funds are sufficient to meets its capital requirements under Solvency . The Company fully complied with the relevant regulatory
requirements during the year.

(d} Company capital structure
2020 2019
£m £m
Equity shareholder’s funds 2,643 3,903
Total capital employed 2,643 3.803

24, Risk management
{a) Risk management framework

The Campany operates a risk management framework that forms an integral pait of the management and Board processes and decision-making framewaork,
aligned to the Group's risk management ftamewaork. The key elements of the risk management framework comprise risk appetite; risk governance, including
risk policies and business standards, risk oversight committees and roles and responsibilities; and the processes the Company uses to identify, measure,
manage, monitor and 1eport (*IMMMR™; risks, including the use of risk models and stress and scenario testing

For the purpases of risk identification and measurement, and aligned to the Company's risk policies, risks are usually grouped by risk type: ciedit, market.
liquidity, life insurance {including long-term health). general insurance {including short-term health) and operational risk, Risks talling within these types may
affect a number of metrics Including those relating to statement of financial position strength, liquidity and profit. They may also affect the service to the
Company's cedants, which can be categorised as risks to our brand and reputation.

To momote a consistent and rigerous approdch 1o risk management ac oss the business, the Company hes a set of tisk policies and business standaids which
set out the risk stiategy, appetite, framework and minimum requitements for the Company's operations. The Chief Executive Officer makes an annual
declatation that the system of governance and internal contiols was effective and fit for purpose far theit business throughout the year: this declaration is
supported by an opinion from the Chief Risk Officer,

Aregulal top-down key risk identificatior and assessment process is carried out by the risk function. This includes the consideration of emeiging risks and is
supported by deeper thematic reviews. The Company also operates a risk and control self-assessment process. The Risk function produces deep dive 1eports
throughout the yeal which are shared with the relevant risk committees.

Risk models are an important tool in the measurement of risks and are used in conjunction with other assessment processes to support the monitoring and
reporting of the risk profile and in the consideration of the risk management actions available. The Campany carries out a 1ange of stress (where one risk
factor. such as interest rates, is assumed to vary; and scenario (where combinations of risk factors are assumed to vary) tests to evaluate their impact on the
business and the management actions available to respond to the conditions envisaged. For those risk types managed through the holding of capital, being
the Company’s principal tisk types except for liquidity risk. the Company measures and monitors its 1isk profile on the basis of the Solvency Isolvency capital
tequirement "SCR7)
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Roles and responsibilities for risk management in the Company are based around the ‘three lines of defence model” where ownership for risk is taken at all
levels, Line managerrient in the business is accountable tor nsk management, including the implementation of the risk management framework and
embedding of the risk culture. The 1isk function is accountable for quantitative and qualitative oversight and chalienge of the IMMMR processes and fo
developing the 1isk management framework. internal Audit provides an independent assessment of the risk management framework and internal control
processes.

Board oversight of 1isk and risk management across the Company 1s maintained on a reguiar basis through its Risk Committee. The Board has overall
responsibility ter determining risk appetite. which is an expiession of the risk the business ts wilting to take. Risk appetites are set relative to capital and
ligquidity,

The Company's position against risk appetite 15 monitored and repoited to the Beard on a regular basis. Long-term sustanability depends upon the
protection of franchise. The oversight of risk and risk management is supported by the Company's ALCO. which focuses on insurance business and financial
risks and ORC. which focuses on ope-ational and reputational risks.

As a predominantly quota share reinsurer of business written within the Aviva group, much of the primary risk management activity occurs within the
Company's cedants which are subject to the same group-wide risk policles and business standards. The reinsurance tieaties require flows of management
information to the Company to allow it to assess, monitor and manage its own risks.

Further information on the types and management of specific risk types is given in sections (b] to (h} below.
(b} Credit risk

Credit 1isk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the defauit or failure of third parties to meet their payment obligations to the Company. or variations in
market values as a result of changes in expectations related to these tisks. Credit risk is taken so that the Company can provide the returns required to satisty
pelicyholder liabilities and to generate returns to the Company's shareholders. The Company is also exposed te third party credit quality changes through a
range of activities including reinsurance and derivatives.

The Company’s approach te managing credit risk recognises that there is a 1isk of adverse financial impact resulting from fluctuations in credit quality of third
parties including default, rating transition and credit spread movements. The Company's credit risks atise principally thiough exposures to debt secinilies,
structired asset investrments, bank deposits, detivative counterpartiss, mortgape lending and reinsurance counterparties and inter—ompany loans and
receivables,

The Company's management of credit risk includes implementation of credit risk management processes tincluding limits frameworksi, the operation of
specific risk management cammittees, and detailed reporting and menitoring of exposures against pte-established risk criteria.

As a result of the financiat market impact of COVID-19 the Company's cedants have taken a number of actions to reduce their exposure to credit spread and
counterparty default risk. Actions taken included purchasing tactical derivative hedges and asset disposals. The Company continues to monitor credit quality
within its cedants' commercial mortgage and equity release mortgage portfolios.

fil Fingncial exposures to Group compariies

The Company has significant financial exposure to amaounts due from fellow Group companies. The credit risk arising from Group counterparties failing 1o
meet all or part of their obligations is considered remote. Due to the nature of the intra-group loans, the level ot collateral provided and the fact that these
loans are not traded, the Company dees not provide for fluctuations in market value caused by changing perceptions of the credit worthiness of such
counterparties.

the Company's principal financial asset is deposits with the ceding undertakings of £67,776 million (2019: £61,388 miflion) as disciosed in note 10. These
deposits arise from the guota share reinsurance agreements between the Company and other group companies as disclosed in the related party transactions
note 26. Ihe deposits represert investments in a range of assets exposed to ciedit risk including government honds, corporate bonds, commercial
mortgages. equity 1elease mortgages and bank deposits and the Company has indirect exposure to movements in the value of or defaults on these
investments. The risks on these assets are managed in the first instance by the cedants through the application of a credit limit framework and credit risk
appetite, adherence to the credit risk policy and related business standards and through oversight by the cedants’ asset liability committees. The Company is
exposed to the risk of the cedants defaulting, although this is sigrificantly reduced by the ability of the Company to offset the deposit with ceding undertaking
against its obligation to make payments in respect of the cedant's insurance liabilities. The individual cedant exposures are monitoted by the Company's
ALCQ and subject to agreed cred it risk limits set by the Board.

The Company aiso has a loan due from its parent, Aviva Group Holdings Limited, amounting to £200 million {2019; £200 million). with further amounts due
from both its parent and other Gioup companies amounting to £8 million (2019: £18 mulfion). The credit risk arising from Aviva Group Holdings Limited faiiing
to meet all or part of its obligations is considered remote, as in its most recent audited financial statements dated 31 December 2019 Aviva Gloup Holdings
Limited had net assets of £19,633 million. The loan to Aviva Group Holdings Limited is secured by a legal charge against the ordinary share capital of Aviva
Insurance Limited mitigating the risk of loss in the event of Aviva Group Holdings Limited defaulting. Due to the nature of the intra-group loans, and the fact
that these loans are not tiaded. the Company is not exposed to the risk of changes to the mairket value caused by changing perceptions of the credit
werthiness of its counterparties.

{ii) Finoncial expasures by credit ratings

Finarcial assets other than equities are graded according to curnent external ciedit ratings issued, AAA is the highest possible 1ating. nvestment grade
financial assets are classified within the range of AAA to BBB ratings. Financial assets which fall outside this 1ange are classified as sun-investment grade. The
following table provides information regarding the aggregated credit risk exposure of the Company for financial assets with external credit ratings. Deposits
with ceding undertakings have been rated by 1eference to the cedant’s own credit rating. "Not rated” assets capture assets not rated by external ratings
agencies. The aredit quality of receivables and other financial assets 1s monitored by the Company. and provisions for impairment are made for irrecoverabie
amounts. In assessing whether assets are impaired, due consideration is given to the factors outlined in accounting policy L.

2020

Carrying value

31 December 2020 AAA AR A BBB Below BBB Not-rated £m
Deposits with ceding undertakings - 98 % 2% - - - 67,776
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2019

Carrying value

31 December 2019 AAA AA A BBE Below BSB Not rated im
Deposits with ceding undertakings 100 %o 61.388

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk of financial assets, without taking collateral into account, is represented by the carrying vaiue of the
financial instruments in the statement of financial positien. These comprise deposits with ceding undertakings and other receivables. The carrying values of
these aszets ale disclosed in the relevant note 10 [Receivables and other financia assets . The collateral in place for these credit exposures is disclosed in
note 10 |Receivables ard other financial assets).

To the extent that collaterai heid is greater than the amount recefvable that it is securing, the table above shows only an amount equal to the latter. [n the
event of default, any over-collateralised security would be returned to the refevant counterparty.

ifif Credit concentration risk

The Company is generally not exposed to significant concentiations of credit risk due to compliance with applicable regulations and the Group credit policy
and limits framewark, which limit investments in individual assets and asset classes. Credit concentrations are monitored by Group as part of the regulal
credit monitoring process and are reported to the Gioup ALCO.

1vi impanment of financial ossets

In assessing whether financial assets carried at amortised cost or classified as available for sale are impaired, due consideration is given 1o the factors
outlined in accounting policies iL). The following table provides information regarding the carrying value of financial assets subject to impairment testing that
have been impaired and the ageing of thaose assets that are past due but notimpaiied.

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Financial
Neither past assets that
due nor 6 months- Greater than have heen Carrying
impaired 0-3 months 3-6 months 1year 1 year impaired value
31 December 2020 £m £Em £m £m £m £m £m
Receivables and other financial assets 68,201 - — — - - 68,201
Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
Financial
Neither past assets that
due nor &6 months-  Greater thanl have been
impaired 0-3 raenths 3-6 months 1 year year impaired Carrying value
31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m tm tm tm

Receivables and other financial assets 61,816 — — - - - 61,816

More information on Receivabies and other financial assets can be found in note 10.

{c) Market risk

Market 1isk is the tisk of adverse financial impact resulting ditectly o indirectly from fluctuations in interest rates, inflation, foreign currency exchange 1ates,
equity and property prices, Market risk arises due to fluctuations in both the value of liabilities and the value of investments held. The Company seeks some
market risks as part of its investment strategy. However, it has limited appetite for interest rate risk because it does not believe interest rate risk is adequately
rewarded.

The Company manages matket risk using its market risk framework and within regulatory constraints. Market 1isk is managed in line with established Group
policy, including established criteria for matching assets and liabilities to limit the impart of mismatches due to market movements.

As for credit risk, the Company is exposed to the underlying performance of the assets repiesenting the deposits with cedants as well as the assets that it
holds directly. The market risk on the assets backing depesits with the cedants are managed in the first instance by the cedants through the application of
market 1isk appetites and tolerances, adherence to the Group market risk fiamework and regulatory constraints, and oversight by the cedarts’ ALCOs. The
exposures of each cedant and the aggregate exposure of the Company is monitored by the Company's ALCO and is subject to approved market risk appetites
and telerances.

As a result of the significant financial market impad of COVID-19, paiticularly 1o equity markets and interest 1ates, the Company's cedants have taken a
number of actions to reduce thek exposures to equity and interest rate risk. Actions include purchasing tactical derivative hedges and asset disposals. The
Company is also exposed to the potential impact of increased defaults and downgrades on its cedant's commercial mortgage loans although the Company's
cedant maintains conservative loan-te-value across this portfolio. The Company's capital position includes an allowance for the expected potential impacts
from downgiades and defaults.

The most material types of market risk that the Company is exposed to are described below.
fil Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk movements where thete is a mis-match between the sensitivity to interest 1ates of the Company's assets
iincluding cdeposits with cedants) and labilities, Interest 1ate tisk also arises from the Company’s long term loan due llom its parent Aviva Group Holdings
Limited {see note 26/allil. The effect of a 109 basis point increase | deciease In interest rates would be an inciease / deciease of interest income before tax of
£2 million 12019 increase . decrease of 42 million).

Sensitivity to changes in interest rates is given ir section (h) 'tisk and capital management’ below.
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(it} Inflation risk

Inflation risk arises piimarily from the Company’s exposure to general insurance claims inflation, inflation linked benetits within the UK annuity portfelia and
expense inflation. Increases in long-term inflation expectations are closely (dnked to long-term interest rates and so are frequently considered with interest
rate nisk. Exposure to inflation risk 's monitored thiough capital modelling. sensitivity testing and stress and scenario testing. The cedants typically manage
inflatian risk thhough asset-liability matching and hedging where appropriate in accordance with approved i1isk appetite.

fit1) Currency risk
The Lompany has exposure to currency risk primarity through its Euio denominated credit risk derivatives,

The Company’s total equity deployment by currency is set out below.

GBP EUR CAD Total
31 December 2020 £m £m £m fm
Total equity 2,680 (83) 46 2,643
GBP EUR CAD Total
31 December 2019 £m £m £m £m
Total equity 4,029 126) — 3,903

A -{-10% change in GEP to EUR period-end foieign exchange rate would result in a change in total equity in the range of £8 mitlion positive impact (2019: £15
millicni and a £9 million adverse impact (2619: £14 nuilion) respectively.

A +/-10% change in GBP to CAD period-end foreign exchange rate would resultin a change in total equity in the range of £4 million adverse impact (2019: £nil}
and a £5 million positive impact (2019 £nili respectively.

There were no material sensitivities in the Company’s total equity to other foreipn exchange rates in 2020 and 2019,
Thv) Derivatives risk

Derivatives arc used for efficient investment management. risk nedging purposes, or to structure specitic 1etail savings products. Derivatives are used within
policy guidelines agreed by the Board of directors and activity is overseen by the Group Capital and Croup Risk teams. which monitor exposuie levels and
approve large or complex transactions.

The Company applies strict requirements to the admimistration and valuation processes it uses, and has a control framework that is consistont with market
and industry practice for the activity that is undertaken.

(v} Correlation risk

The Company recognises that lapse behaviour and potential increases in consumer expectations are sensitive te and interdependent with market movements
and interest 1 ates. These interdependencies are taken into consideration in the internal capital model and in scenario analysis.

(d) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk of not being able to make payments as they beceme due because there aie insufficient assets in cash form.

The Company seeks to ensure that it maintains sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as they fall due through the application of a liquidity risk
policy and hus:ness standard. The Company has a liquidity 1isk appetite which requiles that sufficient liquid resources be maintained to cover net outflows in
a stress scenarie. The Company monitors its position relative to its agreed liguidity risk appetite.

Maturity analysis

Tne following tables show the maturities of the Company’s instiance liabilities, and of the financial and reinsurance assets held to meet them. A maturity
analysis of the contractual amounts payables, other financial liabilities and derivatives is given in notes 19, 20, and 25. respectively.

i Analysis of maturity of insurance liabilities

The foliowing table shows the gross insurance liability at 31 Decembenr 2020 and 2019 analysed by remaining duration. The total liability is split by remaining
duration in proportion to the present value of cash flows expected to arise during that period, as permitted under IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts.

2020

Ondemand or
Total within 1 year 1-5 years 5-15 years Over 15 years
£m £m £m £m im
General insurance and health liabilities 4,100 1,680 1,844 464 112
Life insurance liabilities 60,578 2,206 8,428 20,771 29,173
Payables and othe) financ:al liab lities 214 55 159 - -
Total contract liabilities 64,892 3,941 10,431 21,235 29,185
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2019

On demand or
Total within 1 year 1-5 yeais 5-15 years Over 15 yeals
fm £m fm m £m
General insurance and health liabilities 3,785 1.550 1,659 467 114
Life insurance lisbilities 53,248 2.461 2541 17,638 24,208
Fayables and other financial liab lities 210 53 157 — —
Total contract liabilities 57,243 4,064 10,757 18,100 24.322

{i1) Analysis of maturity of financial assets

The following table provides an analysis, by matuiity date of the principal. of the carrying value of financial assets which are available to fund the repayment
of liabilities as they crystallise.

2020
On demand or 1-5 years Over 5 years

Total within 1 year
£m £im £m £Em
Receivables and other tinancial assets 68,201 4,673 10,340 53,188
Cash and cash equivalents 621 621 - —
68,822 5,294 10,340 53,188
2019

On demand or
Total within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years
£m £m fm £m
Receivables and other fimancial assets 61,816 4,859 11,793 45,164
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,058 1,058 — -
62,874 59017 11,793 45,164

The assets above are analysed in accordance with the earliest pessible redemption date of the Insttument at the initiation of the Company. Where an
irstrument is t+ansferable back to the issuer on demand, such as a unit trust or similar type of investment vehicle, it is included in the 'On demand or within 1

year column.

(e} Insurance risk (General insurance and Life)

The Company is exposed to a range of insurance risks as a result of the reinsurance accepted from cedants.
! Generalinsu ance risks

Genetal insurance 1isks mainly arise from:

. Flucluations in the timing, fleguenty and severity of ¢ faims and claim settlements relative Lo expectations;
. Unexpected claims aiising from a single source or cause:

. Inaccurate pricing of risks o1 inappropriate underwiiting of risks when underwritten: and

+ Inadequate reinsurance protection or othes risk transfer techniques.

the majority of the general insurance business reinsured by the Company is shert tail in nature such as motor. household and cemmercial property
insurances. Gereral insurance risk written within Aviva Group companies is subject to the general insurance sk policy and related business standards and
agreed risk appetites and tolerances and underwriting authorities. External reinsurance fs used by cedants to provide protection from aggregations of risk
and frem catastrophe cover. which in turn reduces the Company’'s exposuie. Qversight of the Company’s exposure is cartied out in the ALCO and ORC.

i Life insurance nsks

Life insurance risk can include mortality risk. morbidity risk, longevity risk. persistency risk and policyholder behaviour risk around take-up of insurance
guatantees and options. The Company's principal life insurance risk is longevity risk arising from the 1einsurance accepted from the annuity business within
UK L&P.

Life insutanice risk writlen within Aviva Group comparnies is subject Lo the life inswance risk pelicy and related business standards and agreed risk appetites
and underwtiting authorities. Oversight of the Company's exposure is canied out in the ALCG and QRC.

L ongevity risk is carefully monitared against the iatest availabie internal and external industry data and emerging tiends. The annuity business within UK 1 &P
has used reinsurance solutions to 1educe the risks from longevity and cortinually menitors emerging market solutions to mitigate this tisk further. Such

reductions in this exposuie would gene ally also 1educe the Company's exposure
Expense risk is primarily managed through the assessment of profitability and frequent monitoring of expense levels.

{f) Operational risk

Operational -isk is the tisk of ditect or inditect loss, atising from inadequate or failed inteinal processes, people and systems. or exterral events including
changes in the reguiatory environment.
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The Company has limited appetite for operational risk and aims to reduce these risks as far as is commer cially sensible.

The Company is exposad to operationat risks in the cedants through the reinsurance tieaties in place. The cedants remain 1esponsible for managing their

operationat risks in line with the group wide operationat tisk framework including the risk and contiol self assessmoent process. but this 1esponsibility does
notimply a limit to the Company's expesure.

The Company's Operational Risk and Contiol Management flamework. integrates the results of the risk identification and assutance activities carried oot
actoss the Company's thiee lines of defence. Operational risks are initially identified and assessed against implemented controls. Residual risk, outside
tolerance, is given priatitised management action ta reduce it w'thin tolerance.

Operational risk is quantitatively assessed on the hasis of financial loss and misstatement. Potential reputational and conduct .mpacts are qualitatively
assessed.

Management identify and capture ioss events, taking appropriate action to address actual control breakdowns and promote internal learning.

{g) Risk and capital management

The Cempany uses a number of sensitivity test-based risk management tools to understand the veo:atility of earnings. the volatility of capital requirements
and tc manage its capital more efficiently. Risk based capital models are used to support the quantification of risk under the Solvency Hl framewori.
Management undertakes a quarterly review of risk, the output from which is a key mnput into the risk-based capital assessments, Primarily, a risk-based
capital model and scenario tests are used. Sensitivities to economic and operating experience are regularly produced on financial performance

measurements to inform the Company’s decision making and planning processes, and as part of the framework for identifying and quantifving the risks to
which the Company is exposed.

{h) Risk and capital management
(it Generol insurance and health

General insurance and health liabilities are estimated by using standarg actuarial claims projection techniques. These methods extrapolate the claims
development for cach accident year based on the observed development of earlier years. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made as projections ate
hased on assumptions -mplicit in the historic claims.

[ir} Life insurance and mvestment contracts

The nature of long-term business is such that a number of assumptions have been made ir compiling these financial statements. Assumptions are made
about investment retuins. expenses, mortality and morbidity rates, and persistency in connection with the in-force policies. Assumptions are best estimates
based on histarical and expected experience of the business. A number of the key assumptions are disciosed in note 15,

{it) Sensilivity resints

Some resuits of sensitivity testing for the Company’s business are set out below. For each sensitivity the impact of a change in 4 single factor is shown, with
other assumptions left unchanged.

Sensitivity factor Description of sensitivity factor applied
Interest rate and tnvestment return The impact of a change in market interest rates by + 1%
Lguity/property market values |The impact of a change in equity/property market values by + 10%]
Assurance mortality/morbidity The impact of an increase in mortality/morbidity rates for assurance contracts by 5%.
The impact of a 0.5% increase in credit spreads over risk free interest rates on corporate bonds and other non-
Credit spreads sovereign credit assets. [The test allows for any consequentialimpact on liability valuations].
Gross loss ratios The impact of an increase in gross loss 1atios for generat insurance business by 5%
Annuitant mortality The impact of a decrease in the mortality rates for annuity contracts by 5%

The above sensitivity factors are applied using actuarial and statist:cal models. The impacts a:e shown in tables below:

Pre-tax impacts on profit and shareholders” equity:

2020
Credit Equity/ Equity/ Assurance Annuitant
Interest interest spreads  property  property mortality mortality Gross loss
rates +1%  rates -1% +0,5% +10% -10% +5%, -5% ratios +5%
£Em £m £m £m £m Em £fm £m
Impact on profit before tax {437) 530 (207} 5 (9) {42) {300) [237)
Impact before tax on shareholders equity (437} 530 {207} 5 (9) (42) {300) {237)]
2019
Credir Equity! Equity/  Asstrance  Annuitant
Interest Interest spreads property property  monality  mortality  Gross loss
rates +1% rates -1% +0.5C +10% S100, +5%, _5iy,  ratios +50%
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Impact on profit hefore tax 627 T3 303) 55 149) 153) 332 (188)
Impact before tax ot shareholders equity (627) 773 1303} 55 (49} 53] 332} (188)

The above sensitivity factoss are applied using actuaiial and statistical models. The sensitivities in the above table are based on figwes included in the 2020
income statement and statement of finarcial position at 31 December 2020, Compaiatives are based on the income statement and statement of financial
position at 31 December 2019,
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Limitations of sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses do not take into account that the assets and fiabilities are actively managed and may vary at the time that ary actual market
movement occurs. For example. the Company's financial risk management strategy aims to manage the exposure to market fluctuations. As investment
markets move past various trigger levels. management actions could include selling investments, changing investment nortfolio allocation and taking other
protective action.

The above tables demonst-ate the effect of a change in a key assumption white other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality there may be a correlation
between the assumptions and other factors. It should also be roted that these sensitivities are non linear. and larger or smaller impacts should not be
interpolated or extrapolated froem these results.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical market movements to demoenstiate potential risks that only represent the
Compary's view of possible near-term market changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty. and the assumptior that all interest rates move in an
identical fashion.

(i) COVID-19

During the year, the Company has been impacted by the COVID 1% pandemic through its operations. insurance products and asset holdings together with
ongoing difficult conditions in globat financial markets and the economy generally.

The impact of COVID-19 on the Company is well understood by the Board and management and significant mitigating actions have been taken. Nevertheless,
COVID-1% remains an engoeing source of uncertainty with potential to further materially influence the Company's risk profile and require additional responses.
The Company is keeping the strategic and operational impacts of COVID- 19 under 1eview and it has been engaging closely with its regulators on the response
to COVID-19.

Throughout the year the Campany has remained opeiational, with stalf working from heme. Manitering of cperational risk has been enhanced to mitigate
additional and changed risk exposures due to alternative ways of working.

Key financial impacts have been observed from velatile equity maikets and falls in interest rates. The Company's cedants have taken actions to reduce
exposure to equity and interest rate risk. credit spreads and counterparty default risk, reducing sensitivity to economic shocks. The Campany continues to
maintain strong solvency and liquidity positions and undertakes a1ange of stress and scenario testing.

{1 General fnsurance risks

The Company continues to closely maonitor tne impact of COVID-19 on Genetal insurance and health business reinsured from its cedants. The exposures,
together with mitigants available to the Company’s cedants are:

. Business Interruption: For the significant majority of UK commeicial policies ieinsured by the Company, where policy wordings are determined by
the Company’s cedant, cover 1s based on a specified list of discases. These policies exclude business interruption due to new and emerging
diseases, ltke COVID-19. Netwithstanding this. tegal clarity was required in terms of the events and the cover provided under some limited and
specific business interruption policy wordings where AlL is the lead or follow insurer. In the UK, following the conclusion of the FCA test case in the
High Court and Supreme Court appeal the legal uncertainty in the UK around gross losses has significantly reduced. In order to provide clarity to
policyholders and mitigate exposure to future events of a similar nature, exclusions have been added to relevant policy wordings at 1enewal. in
Canada, the Company's cedant is party to a number of litigation proceedings challenging coverage under certain policies; however, most of the
Company's cedant commercial palicies, except in very limited circumstances, do not provide for business interruption coverage in the context of 2
closure due to a pandemic.

. Travel Insurance: The Company, through its cedants, is potentially exposed to claims due to travel cancellation, disruption and sickness, primarily
in the UK. The Company's cedants are only exposed to losses after recoveries have beer made from travel providers (e.g. tour operators or airlines)
and agents. Steps have been taken by the Company’s cedants to limit exposure arising from new business, through pricing actions, reinsurance,
withdrawal of preducts and policy options, and clarification of COVID 18 wording. These costs have been offset by reduced claims frequency as a
result of the current low tevels of international travel, and are also partially mitigated through profit commission and futwie pricing agreements
with distiibution partners.

. Other: There have also been impacts in other productiines as a result of reduced economic activity. Physical distancing initiatives and an inciease
in 1emote working over the past year has led to a reduction in aute claims frequency: in Canada's highly regulated and commaoditised personal
motor market, this is driving increased government and regulatory pressure and could impact pricing. Private health insutance claims were also
lower than expected levels in 2020 as a 1esult of the disruption caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. and in the UK the Company's cedant provided a
fair vatue pledge to policyholders to recognise the ongoing uncertainty around the ability to access treatment.

The Company's cedants purchase teinsurarce protection on their property portfolio that Includes coverage for business intertuptior and will seek
reinsurance 1ecoveries of those of its business interruption losses that are covered by reinsurance. The ceatinuing nature of the event means that the
Company’s cedants final exposure is subject to a significant degiee of uncertainty.

1) Ltfe msurance risks

The impact of COVID-19 an the profile of Life insurance 1isks reinsured by the Company. primarily longevity, pe- sistency, mortality and expense risk, has been
limited during 2020. The Company tracks the potential longer-term impacts of the pandemic (e g. morbidity impacts). The Company’s cedant underwtiting
procedures on individual Life Protection products limits exposure to cohoits of the population at highest 1isk of COVID-19, While the Compary’s cedart has
greater potential net exposure thiough Group Life Protection, pricing actions have been taken to limit potential exposure from new business. The Company
expects thele to be some offset to increased protection claims as a result of COVID-19 fram technical provision releases an the UK annuity portfolio.

) Exit of the UK from the EU & UK-EU Free Trade Agreement ("FTA")

The FU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement of 24 December 2020 provides for a dynamic future EU-UK relationship with scope far managed poliey
divergence or maintaining alignment, if the UK chooses. The agieement will bave evolving consequences in 2021 and beyond on financial services regulation.
EL matket access and the UK economy which will require careful monitaring.
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{k} Climate change

Climate change has increased the iequency of extreme weathier events, teading to increased political focus and regulation, as well as growing consume
awareness of the economic and social consequences of climate change, and the impact an their purchasing decision for financial services products.

Recognising climate change presents risk and opportunities for customers, communities and business, the Group is signed up to the United Nations Net-Zero
Asset Owner Alliance commitmert. The Group is acting now to mitigate and manage the impact of climate change on the business. The Group calculates a
Climate Value at Risk against Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change {IPCC) scenarios to assess the climate-reiated risks and opportunities unde:
different emission projections and associated temperature pathways. A range of different financial indicators are usec to assess the impact on the Group’s
investments and insurance liabilities.

The Board approved the adopticn of the new climate risk preferences in September 2020, with the Company’s approved 2021-2023 Plan taking the new
climate risk preferences into consideration.

25. Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses over-the-counter derivative financial instruments, in iine with our overall 1isk management strategy. The objectives include managing
exposure to market risk on existing assets or liabilities.

In the tables below, figures are given for bath the notional amounts and fair values of these instiuments, The notional amounts reflect the aggregate of
individual derivative positions on a gross basis and so give an indication of the overall scale of the derivative transaction. They do notieflect current market
values of the open pesitions. The Tair values represent the gross carrying values at the year end for each class of derivative contract held {or issued) by the
Company.

The fair values do not provide an indication of credit 1isk. as many cver-the-counter transactions are contracted and documented under Swaps and
Derivatives Assodiation ("ISDA") master agreements o1 their equivalent. Such agreements are designed Lo provide a legally enforceable set-off in the event of
default, which reduces credit exposure. In addition, the Company has collateral agieements in piace with the relevant tounterpaities Refler to notel for
further information on collateral and net credit risk of derivative instruments,

iii The Company's derivatives at 31 December 2070 and 2019 were as follows:

2020 20149
Contract/ Contracts
notional Fair value Fair value national Fairvalue Fair value
amount asset liability amaount asset liability
£m £m £m fm £m fm
Credit contracts
0T1C
Swaps 5,371 — 213 5,084 — 209
Total as at 31 December 5,371 — 213 5,084 — 209

Fair value liabilities of £213 million (2019: £209 miflion; are recognised as ‘Derivative liabilities’ in note 19.
The Company's derivalive risk management policies are outlined in note 24

The contractual undiscounted cash flows in relation to non-hedge derivative liabilities have the following maturities

2020 2019

£m £m

Within 1 year (54) 153}
Between one and two years {55) b2}
Between two and three years {54) 52)
Between three and four years {(54) 821
{217) [209]

Collateral

Lertain derivative cantracts involve the piedging of cash coliateral. The amounts of cash collateral receivable or repayatle are included ir note 10.

26. Related party transactions

{a) The Company had the following related party transactions

The Company has the following transactions with related parties which include parent companies and fellow subsidiaries in the normai course of business.
(i) Loan due from parent company

The loan accrues interest at 12 month LIBOR plus a credit margin, cunently at 195 basis points, with settlement 1o be received in cash at matuiity in
December 2042, The credit margin is teset every 5 years, and was resel on 31 Becember 2017, This follows a fai value assessment of the credit tisk of Aviva
Group Holdings Limited and the terms and conditions of the [oan agreement, The reference rate within the loan agreement will be revised duiing 2021 in lighs
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of the cessation of the LIBOR interest rate benchmark. As at 31 December 2020, the loan balance cutstanding was £200 million (2019: £200 muilion). This facility
has been secured by 3 legal charge against the ordinary share capital of Aviva Insurance Limited.

2020 2019
im £m
Over byears 200 200
200 200
Effective interest rate 2.93% 3.12%
i1} Quota share remsurance arrangemcents
The Company has quota shaie reinsurance arrangements with fellow Grous subsidiaries as follows:
. Aviva Inswmance Limited (AL which transacts general and health insutance business, to reinsure 50% of its insurance liabitities;
' Aviva Assurances (FGI} a Group subsidiary incorporated in France which transacts general and health insurance business, to reinsure 50% of its
insurance liabilities:
. Aviva Life & Pensions UK Limited (UK | &Pt which transacts investment and long term insurance business, to reinsuie 30% of the liabilities in fts
ner-pofit sub-fund (NPSFE and
. Aviva Inswance Company of Canada, Aviva General Insumance Company, Traders General Insurance Company, Scottish & Yark Insurance

Co.limited, Flite Insurance Company, S&Y Insuiance Company and Pilot Insurance Company t*CGI7). being the subsidiary companies compiising
the peneral insurance business of Aviva Canada. to reinsuie 25% of its insurance liabilities.

On 26 June 202C the Cempany amended its existing quota share reinsurance treatses with UK L&P, with the amendment backdated to 1 January 2020. The
amended reinsurance treaty covers 30%0 of the existing liabilities and future busiress written in UK L&P's NPSF.

As part of these arrangements, funds in respect of premiums due from the cedants are withheld and this has been reflected in the statement of financial

position within receivables and other financial assets (note 10).

Note 2020 2020 2019 2019

General General

Life insurance insurance Life insurance insurance

£m £m £m £m

Reinsurance premiums earned 2 6,897 3,940 5,435 4,975
Interest and similiar income 3,490 57 6,155 244
Cther income — 18 — 4
Claims and benefits paid 3 {3,682) (2,302) 13./21) [2,906]
Change in insurance liabilities (7,323) {263) 16,1461 (873)
Fee and commussion expense (403) {1,350} 1743 (1,215)
Total {1,021) 100 980 229
Statement of financial position Note 2020 2020 2019 2012
Life insurance  General insurance Life insurance General insurance

£m £m £m £m

Deposits with ceding undertakings 10 61,973 5,803 56.046 5.342
Deferied acquisition costs 11 78 401 61 400
Insurance liabitities {60,509} (5,989) 53,186} 15,613}

{1} Other transactions

The Company 1eceives interest income from, and pays dividends to its parent company in the normal course of business. These actvities are reflected in the

tables below.

3

3
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Services provided to related parties

2020 2019

tncome earned in Receivable at  Income earned in  Receivable at yeas

the year year end the year end

£m £m £m im

fmmediate Parent 6 6 & &
Other Aviva Group companies - 2 — 10
] 8 o 16

The interest receivable from the Company's immediate parent of £6 million (2019 £6 miition) relates to interest on a loan of £200 million 72019 £200 miltion;,
as explained in note Z6iallil. The related party receivables are not secured and no guarantees were received in respect thereat, The receivables will he settled

in accordance with normal credit terms.

Services provided and expenses recharged by related parties

2020 2019
Services Services
provided/ provided;
expenses Payable atyear expenses  Payable atyear
recharged end recharged end
£m fm £m £m
Other Aviva Group compeanies 9 1 8 1
9 1 g 1

Services provided include £9 million (2019: £8 mudiron! inter company management fees payable to feliow subsidiaries of the Aviva Group. Expenses incusred
includes £9 million {201%: £9 nuthion) relating to staff, facilities and other service charges from Aviva Centi al Services UK Limited. The remaining (£1) million for
2019 related to a 1ebate of investment management fees overcharged to the Company by Aviva Investors Global Seivices Limited, arising from the
management of the Company's investments. The related paity payables aie not secued, and will be settled in accordance with normal aedit terms.

Dividends paid

tnterim ordinary dividends totalling £515 million (2019: £190 million) on the Company's ordinary shares were declared and settled during 2020.

Coprtof support letter

During the year, the Campany received a letter of intention from Aviva Group Holdings Limited to provide capital support to the Company in respect of the
potential impact of COVID-19 uncertainties as a result of the treaty amendments with UK L&P, subject to certain conditions. The support was limited to the
extent of any incremental adverse impacts on the Company from the treaty amendments and was available in the event that the Company's capital surplus
fetl below its target range at 31 December 2020. No such support was ultimately necessary.

{b) Key management compensation

The total compensation to those employees, inctuding relevant directors, classified as key management, being those having authority and responsibility for
planning. directing and controlling the activities of the Company, is as foilows:

2020 019
£'000 £'060
Aggregate emoluments 1,210 1.145
1,210 1,145

Key management personnel of the Company may from time to time purchase inswance, savings. asset management or annuity products marketed by the
Group companies on equivalent terms to these available to all employees of the Group. 1n 2020 and 2019, such transactions with key management personnel
were not deemed to be significant either by size ot in the context of their individual positions.

(c) Parent entity
The immediate parent undertaking is Aviva Group Holdings Limited. registered in the United Kingdom.

(d) Ultimate controlling entity

The ultimate controlling entity. and parent of the largest and smallest groups which consolidate the 1esults of the Company, it Aviva plc. Its Group Financial
Statements aie available on application to the Group Company Secretary. Aviva ple. St Helen's, 1 Undershalt, London EC3F 3DQ. and on the Aviva plc website

at www.aviva.com.
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